
Board of Supervisors AGENDA                                                                                                       1                                                                                                              February 11, 2020 

           

County of Inyo 
Board of Supervisors 

Board of Supervisors Room 
County Administrative Center 

224 North Edwards 
Independence, California 

  All members of the public are encouraged to participate in the discussion of any items on the Agenda.  Anyone wishing to speak, please obtain a card from the Board Clerk and 
indicate each item you would like to discuss.  Return the completed card to the Board Clerk before the Board considers the item (s) upon which you wish to speak. You will be 
allowed to speak about each item before the Board takes action on it.  
 
Any member of the public may also make comments during the scheduled “Public Comment” period on this agenda concerning any subject related to the Board of Supervisors or 
County Government.  No card needs to be submitted in order to speak during the “Public Comment” period. 

Public Notices: (1)  In Compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act, if you need special assistance to participate in this meeting please contact the Clerk of the Board at 
(760) 878-0373.  (28 CFR 35.102-35.104 ADA Title II). Notification 48 hours prior to the meeting will enable the County to make reasonable arrangements to ensure accessibility 
to this meeting. Should you because of a disability require appropriate alternative formatting of this agenda, please notify the Clerk of the Board 72 hours prior to the meeting to 
enable the County to make the agenda available in a reasonable alternative format. (Government Code Section 54954.2).  (2) If a writing, that is a public record relating to an 
agenda item for an open session of a regular meeting of the Board of Supervisors, is distributed less than 72 hours prior to the meeting, the writing shall be available for public 
inspection at the Office of the Clerk of the Board of Supervisors, 224 N. Edwards, Independence, California and is available per Government Code § 54957.5(b)(1).               

Note: Historically the Board does break for lunch; the timing of a lunch break is made at the discretion of the Chairperson and at the Board’s convenience. 

 

February 11, 2020 - 8:30 AM                **AMENDED** 

  
 

 1. PUBLIC COMMENT 
  

 

CLOSED SESSION  
  

 

  2. CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL – EXISTING LITIGATION – [Pursuant to 
paragraph (1) of subdivision (d) of Government Code §54956.9] Name of case: 
LADWP v. Inyo County et al. (Kern County Superior Court Case No. BCV-18-
101513-KCT (CEQA)). 

  
 

  3. CONFERENCE WITH COUNTY’S LABOR NEGOTIATORS – Regarding employee 
organizations: Deputy Sheriff’s Association (DSA); Elected Officials Assistant 
Association (EOAA); Inyo County Correctional Officers Association (ICCOA); Inyo 
County Employees Association (ICEA); Inyo County Probation Peace Officers 
Association (ICPPOA); IHSS Workers; Law Enforcement Administrators’ Association 
(LEAA). Unrepresented employees: all. County designated representatives – 
Administrative Officer Clint Quilter, Assistant County Administrator Leslie Chapman, 
Deputy Personnel Director Sue Dishion, County Counsel Marshall Rudolph, Health 
and Human Services Director Marilyn Mann, and Chief Probation Officer Jeff 
Thomson. 

  
 

OPEN SESSION (With the exception of timed items, all open-session items may be considered at any 
time and in any order during the meeting in the Board’s discretion.) 

  
 

10 A.M. 4. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
  

 

  5. REPORT ON CLOSED SESSION AS REQUIRED BY LAW. 
  

 

  6. PUBLIC COMMENT 
  

 

  7. COUNTY DEPARTMENT REPORTS (Reports limited to two minutes) 



Board of Supervisors AGENDA                                                                                                       2                                                                                                              February 11, 2020 

  
 

  8. INTRODUCTIONS - The following new employees will be introduced to the Board: 
Eman Khan, Social Worker IV, HHS; and Adam Graham, Correctional Officer, 
Sheriff's Office. 

  
 

DEPARTMENTAL - PERSONNEL ACTIONS  
  

 

 9. Auditor/Controller - Request Board find that, consistent with the adopted 
Authorized Position Review Policy: A) the availability of funding for one (1) 
Administrative Analyst I, II or III  exists in the General Fund as certified by the 
Auditor-Controller and concurred with by the County Administrator; B) the vacancies 
can be filled by internal candidates within the department, meeting the qualifications 
for the positions; C) approve the closed internal department recruitment and hiring of 
one (1) Administrative Analyst at Range 68-72 ($4,444 - $5,931); and D) authorize 
the Auditor-Controller to backfill the resulting vacancy. 

  
 

 10. Water Department - Request Board find that, consistent with the adopted 
Authorized Position Review Policy: A) the availability of funding for the requested 
positions exists as certified by the Water Director and concurred with by the County 
Administrator and the Auditor-Controller; B) where internal candidates meet the 
qualifications for the positions, the vacancies could possibly be filled through internal 
recruitment, but an open recruitment would be more appropriate; and C) approve the 
hiring of five (5) seasonal Field Assistant I's at Range 050PT ($15.66 - $19.01 per 
hour), from June 1, 2020 through August 27, 2020, contingent upon the Board's 
adoption of the Fiscal Year 2020-2021 budget. 

  
 

CONSENT AGENDA (Approval recommended by the County Administrator) 
  

 

 11. Clerk of the Board - Request Board reappoint Ms. Marilyn Bracken to a four-year 
term on the Independence Cemetery District Board of Trustees, ending March 1, 
2024. (Notice of Vacancy resulted in one request for appointment, from Ms. 
Bracken.) 

  
 

 12. County Administrator - Request Board approve letter of support for an Inyo 
National Forest grant application to do a feasibility and profitability study on 72 
campgrounds on the Inyo National Forest and adjacent lands, including Inyo County 
campgrounds. 

  
 

 13. County Administrator - Advertising County Resources - Request Board approve 
a final payment of $1,500 from the Fiscal Year 2018-19 Advertising County 
Resources Budget to Mule Days to use digital media to help promote the 50th 
Anniversary Commemorative Video. 

  
 

 14. County Counsel - Request Board approve a Conflict of Interest Code adopted by 
the Inyo County Local Transportation Commission. 

  
 

 15. Health & Human Services - Social Services - Request Board approve the 
Memorandum of Understanding between the County of Inyo Health and Human 
Services and Wild Iris Family Counseling and Crisis Center, Inyo and Mono County 
Courts, and Mono County Social Services, and authorize the HHS Director to sign. 

  
 



Board of Supervisors AGENDA                                                                                                       3                                                                                                              February 11, 2020 

 16. Public Works - Request Board authorize payment to the USDA Forest Service of 
Portland, OR for a prior-year invoice in the amount of $7,486.48, dated March 31, 
2019. 
 
 

 
  

 

DEPARTMENTAL (To be considered at the Board's convenience) 
  

 

 17. Water Department - Request Board provide direction to the Owens Valley 
Groundwater Authority representatives in advance of the Owens Valley Groundwater 
Authority meeting scheduled for February 13, 2020 in Bishop, CA. 

  
 

 18. County Administrator - Emergency Services - Request Board: A) declare Global 
Diving & Salvage, Inc. of Vallejo, California, the successful bidder for one (1) 
enclosed cargo trailer complete with specified oil spill prevention response 
equipment, per Bid No. 2019-19; B) authorize a purchase order in an amount not to 
exceed $35,000 for the purchase of one (1) enclosed cargo trailer complete with 
specified oil spill prevention response equipment from Global Diving & Salvage, Inc.; 
and C) authorize the County Administrative Officer, as the Director of Emergency 
Services, to sign the proposal agreement with Global Diving & Salvage, Inc. 

  
 

 19. Clerk of the Board - Request Board approve the minutes of the regular Board of 
Supervisors meeting of February 4, 2020. 

  
 

TIMED ITEMS (Items will not be considered before scheduled time but may be considered any time after 
the scheduled time.) 

  
 

 20. 11 A.M. - AG COMMISSIONER - Cannabis - Request Board approve an ordinance 
titled, “An Ordinance of the Board of Supervisors, County of Inyo, State of California, 
Amending Subsections 5.40.070A.2,  5.40.070A.5A, 5.40.070A.5C, 
5.40.070A.5F, and 5.40.070A.5G of the Inyo County Code." 

  
 

 21. 11 A.M. - AG COMMISSIONER - Cannabis - Request Board: A) conduct a public 
hearing on the consideration of county commercial cannabis licenses for retail 
classification licenses in cannabis zone 5A, microbusiness classification licenses in 
cannabis zone 5E, cultivation in excess of 5,000 sq. ft. classification licenses in zone 
5G, and distribution classification licenses in zone 5G; B) conditionally approve those 
applications that exceeded the 80% minimum threshold as set forth in Inyo County 
code section 5.40.090(H) and authorize issuance of licenses contingent on the 
applicant paying the fees established, and applicants obtaining all applicable permits 
and licenses required by the County and the State of California including payment of 
all required fees and taxes; and C) deny those applications that failed to meet 
minimum requirements. 

  
 

 22. 11 A.M. - PLANNING - Request Board: A) conduct a public hearing on a proposed 
ordinance titled, "An Ordinance of the Board of Supervisors of the County of Inyo, 
State of California, Amending Inyo County Code Sections 18.73.010, 18.73.020, 
18.73.030; 18.73.060, and 18.73.080; Amending Inyo County Code Subsections 
18.73.040.A.9, 18.73.040.A.10, 18.73.070.A, and 18.73.070.B; and Adding 
Subsection 18.73.070.C to the Inyo County Code;" B) certify that it is exempt from 
CEQA; and C) waive further reading of and enact said ordinance. 



Board of Supervisors AGENDA                                                                                                       4                                                                                                              February 11, 2020 

 
  

 

COMMENT (Portion of the Agenda when the Board takes comment from the public and County staff) 
  

 

  23. PUBLIC COMMENT 
  

 

BOARD MEMBERS AND STAFF REPORTS  
  

 

 



County of Inyo

Auditor/Controller
 

DEPARTMENTAL - PERSONNEL ACTIONS -
 ACTION REQUIRED

 
MEETING:  February 11, 2020 

FROM:  Amy Shepherd 
 
SUBJECT:  Authorize the filling of the vacant Administrative Analyst 
 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:
Request Board find that, consistent with the adopted Authorized Position Review Policy: A) the availability of 
funding for one (1) Administrative Analyst I, II or III  exists in the General Fund as certified by the Auditor-
Controller and concurred with by the County Administrator; B) the vacancies can be filled by internal candidates 
within the department, meeting the qualifications for the positions; C) approve the closed internal department 
recruitment and hiring of one (1) Administrative Analyst at Range 68-72 ($4,444 - $5,931); and D) authorize 
the Auditor-Controller to backfill the resulting vacancy.
 
SUMMARY/JUSTIFICATION:
Due to a recent retirement the office of the Auditor-Controller has a vacant Administrative Analyst position. This 
position supervises five office technicians and is responsible for managing the day to day operations of the 
Auditor's office, which include large volumes of daily financial transactions and tasks that have time sensitive 
deadlines. This position is also in charge of ensuring our staff is properly trained and is able to provide consistent 
information to our end users, which are other county departments, special districts and the schools. Along with 
training and oversight, this position is also responsible for a number of high level accounting activities and special 
projects that requires an analytical thinker and a problem solver. 

A closed office recruitment will allow the office to recruit from a pool of candidates that meet the requirement of 
the Administrative Analyst and are familiar with the workflow in the office of the Auditor-Controller. 

BACKGROUND/HISTORY OF BOARD ACTIONS: 

 
ALTERNATIVES AND CONSEQUENCES OF NEGATIVE ACTION:
The alternative would be to not fill the position, creating a shortage of staff within the office of the Auditor-
Controller
 
OTHER AGENCY INVOLVEMENT:

 



Agenda Request 
Page 2

FINANCING:
The position is budgeted in the Auditor-Controller Budget (010400) in the salaries and benefits object codes.
 
ATTACHMENTS:

 
APPROVALS:
Christie Martindale Created/Initiated - 1/27/2020
Christie Martindale Approved - 1/28/2020
Darcy Ellis Approved - 1/28/2020
Christie Martindale Approved - 1/28/2020
Amy Shepherd Approved - 1/29/2020
Sue Dishion Final Approval - 1/29/2020



County of Inyo

Water Department
 

DEPARTMENTAL - PERSONNEL ACTIONS -
 ACTION REQUIRED

 
MEETING:  February 11, 2020 

FROM:  Water Department 
 
SUBJECT:    Recruitment of Five Seasonal Field Assistants 
 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:
Request Board find that, consistent with the adopted Authorized Position Review Policy: A) the availability of 
funding for the requested positions exists as certified by the Water Director and concurred with by the County 
Administrator and the Auditor-Controller; B) where internal candidates meet the qualifications for the positions, 
the vacancies could possibly be filled through internal recruitment, but an open recruitment would be more 
appropriate; and C) approve the hiring of five (5) seasonal Field Assistant I's at Range 050PT ($15.66 - $19.01 
per hour), from June 1, 2020 through August 27, 2020, contingent upon the Board's adoption of the Fiscal Year 
2020-2021 budget.
 
SUMMARY/JUSTIFICATION:
The Water Department has hired annual seasonal Field Assistants to assist with vegetation monitoring 
conducted in accordance with the Long Term Water Agreement and Green Book. The purpose of this program is 
to evaluate vegetation conditions with respect to the Water Agreement's requirements for native vegetation. 
Seasonal Field Assistants also participate in other ongoing vegetation or mitigation project monitoring programs.

BACKGROUND/HISTORY OF BOARD ACTIONS: 

 
ALTERNATIVES AND CONSEQUENCES OF NEGATIVE ACTION:
The Board could decide not to approve the request. This alternative would hamper the Water Department's ability 
to address questions concerning the existing vegetation conditions and whether the Water Agreement goals and 
provisions are being met.
 
OTHER AGENCY INVOLVEMENT:
 The Inyo County Personnel Department will assist with the recruitment of the requested positions.
 
FINANCING:
Funds are available in the Board approved FY 2019-2020 Water Department budget (024102-5012) for five 
Seasonal Field Assistants from June 1 to June 30, 2020. Five Seasonal Field Assistants from July 1, 2020 to 



Agenda Request 
Page 2

August 27, 2020 are contingent on the adoption of the 2020/21 budget.
 
ATTACHMENTS:

 
APPROVALS:
Laura Piper Created/Initiated - 1/14/2020
Darcy Ellis Approved - 1/14/2020
Sue Dishion Approved - 1/15/2020
Amy Shepherd Approved - 1/16/2020
Marshall Rudolph Approved - 1/16/2020
Aaron Steinwand Final Approval - 1/16/2020



County of Inyo

Clerk of the Board
 

CONSENT - ACTION REQUIRED
 
MEETING:  February 11, 2020 

FROM:  Assistant Clerk of the Board 
 
SUBJECT:  Appointment to the Independence Cemetery District Board of Trustees 
 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:
Request Board reappoint Ms. Marilyn Bracken to a four-year term on the Independence Cemetery District Board 
of Trustees, ending March 1, 2024. (Notice of Vacancy resulted in one request for appointment, from Ms. 
Bracken.)
 
SUMMARY/JUSTIFICATION:
Your Board is the appointing authority for the Independence Cemetery District Board of Trustees. Ms. Marilyn 
Bracken of Independence is currently serving a term on the Board of Trustees that expires March 1, 2020.

Per your Board's appointment policy, the upcoming vacancy was publicly advertised and one request for 
appointment, from Ms. Bracken, was received by the application deadline.

BACKGROUND/HISTORY OF BOARD ACTIONS: 
N/A
 
ALTERNATIVES AND CONSEQUENCES OF NEGATIVE ACTION:
Your Board could choose not to reappoint Ms. Bracken and re-open the recruitment, however this is not 
recommended as Ms. Bracken is qualified and would like to continue being of service to the cemetery district.
 
OTHER AGENCY INVOLVEMENT:
Independence Cemetery District
 
FINANCING:
There are no fiscal impacts to the County associated with this appointment, outside of the minimal cost to 
advertise the Notice of Vacancy.
 
ATTACHMENTS:
1. Notice of Vacancy - Independence Cemetery District
2. Letter of Interest - Marilyn Bracken
 
APPROVALS:



Agenda Request 
Page 2

Darcy Ellis Created/Initiated - 2/4/2020
Darcy Ellis Final Approval - 2/4/2020



PROOF OF PUBLICATION
(2015.5 c.C.P.)

STATE OF CALIFORNIA,
COUNTY OF INYO

I am a citizen of the United States
and a resident of the County aforesaid.
I am over the age of eighteen years,

And not a party to or interested in the
above-entitled matter. I am the principal
clerk of the printer of the

The lnyo Register

County of lnyo
The lnyo Register has been adjudged a
newspaper of general circulation by the
Superior Court of the County of lnyo,
State of California, under date of
Oct. 5, 1953, Case Number 5414;
that the notice, of which the annexed
is a printed copy (set in type not
smaller than non-pareil), has been
published in each regular and entire
issue of said newspaper and not in
any supplement thereof, on the
following date, to with:

January 25th
ln the year of 2O2A

I certify (or declare) under penalty of perjury
that the foregoing is true and correct.

Dated at Bishop, California, on this
25th Day of January,2O2O

QZ

tn''i'*,1'11"t,1''--tof 
".9#n*-"'"rk'sFirinsStamp

^',o:l r!!! R , i: ]}: l!i
/...:;.j j..l ,.i;, ; il .... .,'i

Proof of Publication of
Public Notice

NOTICE OF VACANCY
INDEPENDENCE CEMETERY

DISTRICT BOARD OF
TRUSTEES

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN
that the lnyo County Board ol
Supervisors is accepting appli-
cations to fill one (1) vacancy
on the lndependence'Ceme-
tery District Board of Trustees:
one lour-year term ending
March1,2024.

ll you are interested in serving
on the lndependence Ceme-

tery District Board of Trustees,
please submit your request for
apporntment to the Clerk of the
Board of Supervisors at p.O.

Pjlryqt N, tndependence, CA
93526 or dellis@ inyocounty.us.
ln order for your request for ap-
porntment lo be considered, it
must be received on or belore
Monday, February g,2O2O at5:00 p.m. (tR 01.25.2020
#20045)

Signature



January 21,2020

Inyo County Board of Supervisors
P.O. DrawerN
Independence, CA 93526

Marilyn Bracken
210 N. Grant
Independence, CA 93526
(760) 878-2309

'ai

'.:

&,>

{> 
"rUk til-k f-!
t ci

-tl "{l*t
+11

i\} r*!
iJ

Lrl
l3

RE: Reappointment to Independence Cemetery District Board

Dear Honorable Board,

I am requesting reappointment to the Independence Cemetery Dishict Board of
Trustees for an additional four-year term ending March 1,2024. Thank you for
consideration of my request,

Sincerely,%
Marifyn Bracken



County of Inyo

County Administrator
 

CONSENT - ACTION REQUIRED
 
MEETING:  February 11, 2020 

FROM:  Leslie Chapman 
 
SUBJECT:  Letter of support for Inyo National Forest's application for the Innovative Finance for National Forests 
Grant Program. 
 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:
Request Board approve letter of support for an Inyo National Forest grant application to do a feasibility and 
profitability study on 72 campgrounds on the Inyo National Forest and adjacent lands, including Inyo County 
campgrounds.
 
SUMMARY/JUSTIFICATION:
Mammoth Lakes Trails and Public Access Foundation (MLTPA) is  preparing a grant application on behalf of Inyo 
National Forest (INF) to do a feasibility and profitability study for 72 campgrounds on the INF and adjacent county 
lands to include all Inyo County campgrounds. The grant request is for $150,000 to assess needs, set priorities 
and create a business plan. 

BACKGROUND/HISTORY OF BOARD ACTIONS: 
None
 
ALTERNATIVES AND CONSEQUENCES OF NEGATIVE ACTION:
None
 
OTHER AGENCY INVOLVEMENT:
MLTPA, INF
 
FINANCING:
Not applicable
 
ATTACHMENTS:
1. INF Letter of Support for Grant Application
 
APPROVALS:
Leslie Chapman Created/Initiated - 2/6/2020
Darcy Ellis Approved - 2/6/2020
Leslie Chapman Final Approval - 2/6/2020



Agenda Request 
Page 2



MEMBERS OF THE BOARD •  DAN TOTHEROH  •  JEFF GRIFFITHS •  RICK PUCCI •  MARK  TILLEMANS  •  MATT  KINGSLEY
CLINT G. QUILTER •  Clerk of the Board •  DARCY ELLIS  •  Assistant Clerk of the Board

            

February 11, 2020

Jeff Lerner
Innovative Finance for National Forests Program Coordinator
US Endowment for Forestry and Communities
908 East North Street
Greenville, SC 29601

Via email: Jeff Lerner, jalanlerner@gmail.com
      Peter Stangel, peter@usendowment.org

Dear Mr. Lerner,

Please accept this letter of support from Inyo County for the Innovative Finance for National Forests 
grant application titled “Inyo National Forest Campgrounds”, being submitted on behalf of the Inyo 
National Forest and other regional partners by the Mammoth Lakes Trails and Public Access 
Foundation. 

In California’s Eastern Sierra, federal public land agencies share common destinies with the 
gateway communities they serve. Recently, Inyo County has joined with these communities and our 
Federal partners to establish a unique public-public partnership with the U.S. Forest Service called 
the Eastern Sierra Sustainable Recreation Partnership (ESSRP). Campgrounds in the region are 
ripe for major overhauls. For example, all campgrounds in Inyo County are in dire need of repair or 
replacement of infrastructure including water systems and structures. The major regional readiness 
gap is a feasibility and profitability study – the purpose of this IFNF grant application - to analyze the 
proposed campground project for potential financing opportunities from alternative capital resources. 

Inyo County looks forward to working with the Innovative Finance for National Forests Program and 
our regional partners in the ESSRP on the “Profitability Study”, should the grant be awarded, and to 
bringing new sources of capital investment to the public landscape that defines our region.

Thank you for your consideration of this project.

Sincerely,

Matt Kingsley, Chair
Inyo County Board of Supervisors

BOARD OF SUPERVISORS
COUNTY OF INYO

P. O. DRAWER N   INDEPENDENCE, CALIFORNIA 93526
TELEPHONE (760) 878-0373 

email: dellis@inyocounty.us

mailto:jalanlerner@gmail.com
mailto:peter@usendowment.org


County of Inyo

County Administrator - Advertising County 
Resources

 

CONSENT - ACTION REQUIRED
 
MEETING:  February 11, 2020 

FROM:   
 
SUBJECT:  Final Community Project Sponsorship Grant Payment for one completed project.  
 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:
Request Board approve a final payment of $1,500 from the Fiscal Year 2018-19 Advertising County Resources 
Budget to Mule Days to use digital media to help promote the 50th Anniversary Commemorative Video.
 
SUMMARY/JUSTIFICATION:
Bishop Mule Days was awarded a FY 2018-19 County of Inyo Community Project Sponsorship Competitive 
Grant in the amount of $3,000 to create an online and social media (digital) advertising campaign to help promote 
the event’s 50th anniversary video to a national audience. After contracts were finalized, 50 percent the grant 
funds were disbursed, and Mule Days has provided staff with sufficient documentation of acceptable expenses 
for reimbursement for a final payment of $1,500. Mule Days also provided evidence that Inyo County was 
prominently mentioned as a sponsor of the event in ads and other promotional material.

BACKGROUND/HISTORY OF BOARD ACTIONS: 

 
ALTERNATIVES AND CONSEQUENCES OF NEGATIVE ACTION:
The Board could deny the request for final payment, resulting in Mule Days only receiving half of the CPSP grant 
funds. 
 
OTHER AGENCY INVOLVEMENT:
Inyo County Auditor/Controller; County Administrator’s Office  
 
FINANCING:
The  Community Project Sponsorship Program is part of the Advertising County Resources budget and is financed 
from the General Fund. Funds for these grants have been budgeted in the FY 2018-19 Advertising County 
Resources Budget (011400) in the Object Codes noted in the Departmental Recommendation. 
 
ATTACHMENTS:



Agenda Request 
Page 2

1. 2019 Mule Days Digital Advertising
 
APPROVALS:
Jon Klusmire Created/Initiated - 1/29/2020
Darcy Ellis Approved - 1/29/2020
Jon Klusmire Approved - 1/30/2020
Marshall Rudolph Approved - 1/30/2020
Amy Shepherd Approved - 1/31/2020
Leslie Chapman Final Approval - 1/31/2020















County of Inyo

County Counsel
 

CONSENT - ACTION REQUIRED
 
MEETING:  February 11, 2020 

FROM:   
 
SUBJECT:   
 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:
Request Board approve a Conflict of Interest Code adopted by the Inyo County Local Transportation 
Commission.
 
SUMMARY/JUSTIFICATION:
Your Board is the "code-reviewing body" for conflict-of-interest codes adopted by Inyo County agencies pursuant 
to requirements of the Political Reform Act.  (See California Government Code sections 82011 and 87300 et 
seq.) The Inyo County Local Transportation Code recently adopted a new conflict of interest code.  See attached 
resolution.  I have reviewed it and find it meets applicable legal requirements.  I recommend that your Board 
approve it.

BACKGROUND/HISTORY OF BOARD ACTIONS: 

 
ALTERNATIVES AND CONSEQUENCES OF NEGATIVE ACTION:
N/A
 
OTHER AGENCY INVOLVEMENT:

 
FINANCING:

 
ATTACHMENTS:
1. Inyo LTC Conflict of Interest Code Resolution No. 2019-10
 
APPROVALS:
Marshall Rudolph Created/Initiated - 1/24/2020
John Pinckney Approved - 1/29/2020
Michael Errante Approved - 1/30/2020
Darcy Ellis Approved - 1/30/2020



Agenda Request 
Page 2

Marshall Rudolph Final Approval - 1/30/2020











County of Inyo

Health & Human Services - Social Services
 

CONSENT - ACTION REQUIRED
 
MEETING:  February 11, 2020 

FROM:   
 
SUBJECT:  Approve a Memorandum of Understanding between Inyo County HHS and Community Partners 
 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:
Request Board approve the Memorandum of Understanding between the County of Inyo Health and Human 
Services and Wild Iris Family Counseling and Crisis Center, Inyo and Mono County Courts, and Mono County 
Social Services, and authorize the HHS Director to sign.
 
SUMMARY/JUSTIFICATION:
Wild Iris Family Counseling and Crisis Center, a community partner, is applying for two separate grants through 
the Office of Violence Against Women, one through the Justice for Families Program and the other through the 
Rural Domestic Violence, Dating Violence, Sexual Assault, and Stalking Program.  The funding, if granted, will 
support critical services, including supervised visitation and civil legal advocacy, to victims of domestic violence, 
dating violence, sexual assault, and stalking in communities throughout Inyo and Mono counties.  These are 
services that are critical to the families served by Health and Human Services (HHS) and Social Services in both 
counties.

The proposed MOU outlines the roles and responsibilities of each of the involved community partners, including 
HHS, Mono County Social Services, Inyo and Mono Courts, and Wild Iris.  These community partners have a 
long-standing history of collaboration and a common goal of supporting individuals and families who have 
experienced these types of violence.  The MOU is a requirement of the granting agency and our Department 
respectfully requests your Board's approval and authorization for the HHS Director to sign the MOU. 

BACKGROUND/HISTORY OF BOARD ACTIONS: 
N/A
 
ALTERNATIVES AND CONSEQUENCES OF NEGATIVE ACTION:
Your Board could choose not to approve the MOU, which may have a negative impact on the partnering agency's 
ability to receive the grant requests. 
 
OTHER AGENCY INVOLVEMENT:
Wild Iris Family Counseling and Crisis Center, Inyo and Mono Courts, and Mono County Social Services
 
FINANCING:



Agenda Request 
Page 2

No Fiscal Impact
 
ATTACHMENTS:
1. FINAL MOU with Wild Iris
 
APPROVALS:
Marilyn Mann Created/Initiated - 1/23/2020
Darcy Ellis Approved - 1/24/2020
Meaghan McCamman Approved - 1/24/2020
Marshall Rudolph Approved - 1/24/2020
Marilyn Mann Final Approval - 1/24/2020



1

Memorandum of Understanding

WHEREAS, Wild Iris Family Counseling and Crisis Center, Mono County Superior 
Court, Mono County Child Welfare Services, Inyo County Superior Court, and Inyo 
County Child Protective Services have come together to collaborate and to make an 
application for the Office on Violence Against Women Justice for Families Program 
grant and the Office on Violence Against Women Rural Domestic Violence, Dating 
Violence, Sexual Assault, and Stalking Program grant; and

WHEREAS, the partners listed below have agreed to enter into a collaborative 
agreement in which Wild Iris Family Counseling and Crisis Center will be the lead 
agency and named applicant and other agencies will be partners in this application; and

WHEREAS, the partners herein desire to enter into a Memorandum of Understanding 
setting forth the services to be provided by the collaborative; and

WHEREAS, the applications prepared and approved by the collaborative through its 
partners are to be submitted to the Office on Violence Against Women on or before 
January 22, 2020 and January 28, 2020 respectively.

I) Description of Partner Agencies

Wild Iris Family Counseling and Crisis Center provides services to survivors of domestic 
violence, dating violence, sexual assault, and stalking in Mono and Inyo Counties.

Mono and Inyo County Superior Courts adjudicate the crimes of domestic violence, 
dating violence, sexual assault, and stalking, and make findings in civil court cases of 
restraining orders, divorce, custody, and child/spousal support. 

Mono County Child Welfare Services and Inyo County Child Protective Services 
promote the well-being of children by ensuring safety, achieving permanency, and 
strengthening families to successfully care for their children.  This includes investigating 
allegations of child abuse and neglect, and providing resources to families.

II) History of Relationship

Wild Iris Family Counseling and Crisis Center was established in 1981 and promptly 
began partnership with the courts and social service agencies in Mono and Inyo 
Counties to provide support to survivors of domestic violence, dating violence, sexual 
assault, and stalking.

These collaborators meet quarterly for the Inyo County Sexual Assault Team, Inyo 
County Domestic Violence Council, Inyo County Community Corrections Partnership, 
Mono County Sexual Assault Response Team, and Mono County Community 
Corrections Partnership. 



2

The critical and long-range goals of these collaborations are to coordinate efforts to 
address issues of domestic violence, dating violence, sexual assault, and stalking in 
Inyo and Mono Counties, increase and improve services to survivors, and promote 
perpetrator accountability.

III) Development of Application

Wild Iris Family Counseling and Crisis Center began this application in response to an 
increased need for supervised visitation, court advocacy, and crisis services by our 
clients, especially in our rural and underserved communities. Wild Iris has primarily 
prepared this application with agreement to collaborate by the partners.

IV) Roles and Responsibilities

NOW, THEREFORE, it is hereby agreed by and between the partners as follows:

Wild Iris Family Counseling and Crisis Center will create a full-time supervised visitation 
monitor position and add additional full-time Court Advocate and Outreach Advocate 
positions for the purposes of better serving the needs of survivors of domestic violence, 
dating violence, sexual assault, and stalking in our rural communities and increasing 
collaboration with these partners. Wild Iris will create formal referral systems to receive 
supervised visitation and court advocacy referrals from each partner. Wild Iris will 
provide professional training on the issues of domestic violence, dating violence, sexual 
assault, and stalking to project partners as necessary. Wild Iris will provide voluntary 
services to appropriately referred individuals who have experienced domestic violence, 
dating violence, sexual assault, and/or stalking. 

In kind, each partner will agree to provide within their rural satellite facilities dedicated, 
confidential space for Wild Iris advocates to use for up to 10 hours/week while meeting 
with referred individuals. Additionally, each partner will identify any necessary staff 
training related to domestic violence, dating violence, sexual assault, and stalking that 
could be provided by Wild Iris.

Wild Iris’s Executive Director and Family Services Program Manager, Mono County 
Presiding Judge or their designee, Mono County Child Welfare Services Manager, Inyo 
County Presiding Judge or their designee, and Inyo County Child Protective Services 
designated staff will be responsible for the planning, development, and implementation 
of this project. The planning team will work with all partners through the venue of 
currently existing collaborative meetings, and planning decisions will be communicated 
to program staff by Wild Iris Family Services Program Manager.

Collaboration between the project partners has existed for decades and all parties value 
continued collaboration for the purpose of serving victims of domestic violence, dating 
violence, sexual assault, and stalking in our service area. Efforts by Wild Iris to secure 



3

additional funding and create sustainable infrastructure for continued collaboration will 
ensure sustainability of this project once grant funds are no longer available.

1) Wild Iris Family Counseling and Crisis Center will provide supervised visitation and 
civil legal advocacy to victims of domestic violence, dating violence, sexual assault, and 
stalking including: supervised visits; assistance with completing, filing, and serving 
temporary restraining order, custody, child/spousal support, and divorce applications; 
referrals to attorneys and legal services; court accompaniment; and advocacy. 

2) Inyo County Courts will provide civil legal hearings in cases of domestic violence, 
dating violence, sexual assault, and stalking including: restraining orders, divorce, 
custody, and child/spousal support.

3) Inyo County Child Protective Services will provide protective services to victims of 
domestic violence, dating violence, sexual assault, and stalking including: investigations 
of abuse and neglect allegations, case management, resources, and referrals.

4) Mono County Courts will provide civil legal hearings in cases of domestic violence, 
dating violence, sexual assault, and stalking including: restraining orders, divorce, 
custody, and child/spousal support.

5) Mono County Child Welfare Services will provide protective services, according to 
state and federal law, to child victims of domestic violence, dating violence, sexual 
assault, and stalking including: investigations of abuse and neglect allegations, case 
management, resources, and referrals.

6) Wild Iris and Inyo County Courts will collaborate in the following manner: When 
appropriate, Presiding Judges or their designee will make referrals to Wild Iris in family 
court or restraining order cases where domestic violence, dating violence, sexual 
assault, or stalking is present. Wild Iris advocates will be provided with private office 
space to use to assist referred clients or others seeking assistance with restraining 
order, divorce, custody, and child/spousal support applications. 

7) Wild Iris and Inyo County Child Protective Services will collaborate in the following 
manner: When appropriate, Child Protective Service case workers will make referrals to 
Wild Iris in abuse or neglect cases where domestic violence, dating violence, sexual 
assault, or stalking is or has been present. Wild Iris advocates will be provided with 
private office space to use to assist referred clients or others seeking assistance with 
advocacy, referrals, and accompaniment to appointments.

8) Wild Iris and Mono County Courts will collaborate in the following manner: When 
appropriate, Presiding Judges or their designee will make referrals to Wild Iris in family 
court or restraining order cases where domestic violence, dating violence, sexual 
assault, or stalking is present. Wild Iris will be provided with private office space to use 
to assist referred clients or others seeking assistance with restraining order, divorce, 
custody, and child/spousal support applications.



4

9) Wild Iris and Mono County Child Welfare Services will collaborate in the following 
manner: When appropriate, Child Welfare Service case workers will make referrals to 
Wild Iris in abuse or neglect cases where domestic violence, dating violence, sexual 
assault, or stalking is present. Wild Iris advocates will be provided with private office 
space to use to assist referred clients or others seeking assistance with advocacy, 
referrals, and accompaniment to appointments.

10) Inyo County Courts and Inyo County Child Protective Services will collaborate in the 
following manner: continue existing partnership.

11) Mono County Courts and Mono County Child Welfare Services will collaborate in 
the following manner: continue existing partnership.

V) Timeline

The roles and responsibilities described above are contingent on Wild Iris Family 
Counseling and Crisis Center receiving funds requested for the project described in the 
OVW grant application. Responsibilities under this Memorandum of Understanding 
would coincide with the grant period, anticipated to be 10/01/2020 through 09/30/2023.

VI) Commitment to Partnership

1) The collaboration service area includes Inyo and Mono Counties.

2) The partners agree to collaborate and provide referrals to Wild Iris for supervised 
visitation and court advocacy and office space for Wild Iris advocates to provide 
services to victims of domestic violence, dating violence, sexual assault, and stalking 
pursuant to the program narrative of the grant application attached to this agreement.

3) We, the undersigned have read and agree with this MOU. Further, we have reviewed 
the proposed project and approve it.

By ____________________

Executive Director, Wild Iris Family Counseling and Crisis Center

Date __________________

By________________________

Director, Inyo County Health and Human Services

Date _______________________



5

By________________________

CEO, Inyo County Courts 

Date _______________________

By________________________

CEO, Mono County Courts

Date _______________________

By________________________

Director, Mono County Health and Human Services

Date _______________________

cc: Agencies and Interested Parties



County of Inyo

Public Works
 

CONSENT - ACTION REQUIRED
 
MEETING:  February 11, 2020 

FROM:  Debbe Ditmar 
 
SUBJECT:  Request Board to authorize payment to USDA Forest Service of Portland, OR for a prior-year CSA2 
invoice. 
 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:
Request Board authorize payment to the USDA Forest Service of Portland, OR for a prior-year invoice in the 
amount of $7,486.48, dated March 31, 2019.
 
SUMMARY/JUSTIFICATION:
This USDA Forest Service bill dated March 31, 2019 was discovered to be unpaid and remains outstanding for 
Fiscal Year 2018/2019. The bill is for the amount of $7,486.48, for services rendered at the Bishop Creek 
Sewage Treatment Plant per Agreement NMRG-94-CO-11050466-005 between Inyo County and the Forest 
Service. 

BACKGROUND/HISTORY OF BOARD ACTIONS: 

 
ALTERNATIVES AND CONSEQUENCES OF NEGATIVE ACTION:
You can decide to not authorize this invoice to be paid, which will directly go against the County Service Area 
#2 and Forest Service Agreement - to pay for services provided at the Bishop Sewage Treatment Plan - and is 
not a recommended plan of action.
 
OTHER AGENCY INVOLVEMENT:
Auditor's Office for the availability of funds budgeted for this agreement.
 
FINANCING:
CSA2 budget 810001 Object Code 5265 Professional Services
 
ATTACHMENTS:
1. CSA2 Invoice
 
APPROVALS:
Debbe Ditmar Created/Initiated - 1/27/2020
Darcy Ellis Approved - 1/28/2020



Agenda Request 
Page 2

Debbe Ditmar Approved - 1/28/2020
Michael Errante Approved - 1/28/2020
Breanne Nelums Approved - 1/28/2020
Amy Shepherd Approved - 1/28/2020
Michael Errante Final Approval - 1/29/2020





County of Inyo

Water Department
 

DEPARTMENTAL - NO ACTION REQUIRED
 
MEETING:  February 11, 2020 

FROM:  Water Department 
 
SUBJECT:  Direction for County's OVGA Representatives 
 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:
Request Board provide direction to the Owens Valley Groundwater Authority representatives in advance of the 
Owens Valley Groundwater Authority meeting scheduled for February 13, 2020 in Bishop, CA.
 
SUMMARY/JUSTIFICATION:
At the February 13, 2020 OVGA meeting, the consultant preparing the Groundwater Sustainability Plan (GSP) 
will present elements of the GSP components.  The consultant will also provide an update of the progress of the 
Ad Hoc subcommittee established to develop recommendations on guiding principles for the Communications 
and Engagement Plan process.  These items will constitute the majority of the meeting.  

The OVGA Board will consider requests from two Members to terminate their participation in the OVGA Joint 
Powers Agreement and cancel their respective funding agreement.  Members were requested in December 
following the finalization of basin priority to review their continued participation with their respective agencies and 
if desired submit a request to terminate membership.  Given the scheduling difficulties around the holidays, some 
member agencies met in January to consider their status.  Additionally, there will be an agenda item to discuss 
the financial implications of adjustments to the Board membership.
   
OVGA staff will also provide a fiscal report and updates on the Indian Wells Valley Groundwater Authority and 
Owens Lake Groundwater Working Group activities.

BACKGROUND/HISTORY OF BOARD ACTIONS: 
N/A
 
ALTERNATIVES AND CONSEQUENCES OF NEGATIVE ACTION:
N/A
 
OTHER AGENCY INVOLVEMENT:
City of Bishop, Mono County, Tri-Valley GWMD, Indian Creek-Westridge CSD, Eastern Sierra CSD, Big Pine 
CSD, Sierra Highlands CSD
 
FINANCING:



Agenda Request 
Page 2

N/A
 
ATTACHMENTS:
1. Feb. 13 OVGA Agenda - draft
 
APPROVALS:
Aaron Steinwand Created/Initiated - 1/24/2020
Darcy Ellis Approved - 1/24/2020
Marshall Rudolph Approved - 1/27/2020
Amy Shepherd Approved - 1/27/2020
Aaron Steinwand Final Approval - 1/30/2020



Big Pine CSD – City of Bishop – County of Inyo – County of Mono – Eastern Sierra CSD – Indian Creek-Westridge CSD –
Sierra Highlands CSD –Tri Valley Groundwater Management District 

Owens Valley Groundwater Authority

Bishop City Council Chambers
301 West Line St.

Bishop, Ca
February 13, 2020  2:00 PM

Board of Directors Meeting Agenda

All members of the public are encouraged to participate in the discussion of any items on the Agenda. Members of the public will be allowed to speak about each 
agenda item before the Board of Directors takes action on it. Any member of the public may also make comments during the scheduled “Public Comment” period on 
this agenda concerning any subject related to the Board of Directors or the Owens Valley Groundwater Authority.

Public Notice: In Compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act, if you need special assistance to participate in this meeting please contact Laura Piper at 
(760) 878-0001. (28 CFR 35.102-35.104 ADA Title II). Notification 48 hours prior to the meeting will enable the County to make reasonable arrangements to ensure 
accessibility to this meeting. Should you because of a disability require alternative formatting of this agenda, please notify Laura Piper 72 hours prior to the meeting 
to enable the OVGA to make the agenda available in a reasonable alternative format. (Government Code Section 54954.2).

OPEN SESSION (With the exception of timed items, all open-session items may be considered at any time and 
in any order during the meeting at the Board’s discretion.)

1. Pledge of allegiance.

2. Public comment.

3. Introductions.

4. Approval of minutes from the January 9, 2019 OVGA Board meeting.

5. Board Member Reports.

6. OVGA staff reports
a. Financial Report.
b. Report on Indian Wells Valley Groundwater Authority activities. 

7. Owens Lake update and direction to staff

8. Termination of Members & Funding Agreements.
a. Consideration of requests from Members to terminate OVGA membership;
b. Consideration of requests from Members requesting membership termination to cancel their 

respective funding agreements with the OVGA.

9. Update on the Communications and Engagement Plan.   

10. Presentation from Daniel B. Stephens and Associates on elements of the Groundwater Sustainability Plan. 

11. Discussion of financial implications of adjustments to OVGA Board membership.
  

12. Discussion regarding future agenda items.

13. Set next meeting.

14. Adjourn.



County of Inyo

County Administrator - Emergency Services
 

DEPARTMENTAL - ACTION REQUIRED
 
MEETING:  February 11, 2020 

FROM:  Kelley Williams 
 
SUBJECT:  Award Bid and Approve the Purchase of Oil Spill Prevention Response Equipment 
 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:
Request Board: A) declare Global Diving & Salvage, Inc. of Vallejo, California, the successful bidder for one (1) 
enclosed cargo trailer complete with specified oil spill prevention response equipment, per Bid No. 2019-19; B) 
authorize a purchase order in an amount not to exceed $35,000 for the purchase of one (1) enclosed cargo trailer 
complete with specified oil spill prevention response equipment from Global Diving & Salvage, Inc.; and C) 
authorize the County Administrative Officer, as the Director of Emergency Services, to sign the proposal 
agreement with Global Diving & Salvage, Inc.
 
SUMMARY/JUSTIFICATION:
On July 2, 2019, your Board approved Resolution No. 2019-29 "A Resolution of the Board of Supervisors of the 
County of Inyo, State of California, to Accept Grant Funds From the California Department of Fish and Wildlife, 
Office of Spill Prevention and Response, for Oil Spill Response Equipment".

The Inyo County Office of Emergency Services utilized the formal bidding process for the purchase of one 
(1) enclosed cargo trailer, complete with specific equipment, to be used to support oil spill prevention response 
activities.  

During the bidding process, only one (1) bid was received. Global Diving & Salvage, Inc. of Vallejo, California, 
submitted an acceptable bid that adequately met the oil spill prevention response trailer and equipment 
specifications and was also within the grant project approved budget allocation.

In addition to the equipment, Global Diving & Salvage, Inc. will be providing eight (8) hours of classroom and in-
field training for ten (10) pre-identified response personnel. This training will include a morning session on oil spill 
response fundamentals, regulatory information, oil containment boom strategies and familiarization with types of 
oil containment boom and spill response materials.  The afternoon session will include a hands-on oil spill 
response field training, providing an overview of the trailer and its equipage. 

BACKGROUND/HISTORY OF BOARD ACTIONS: 
Board approved Resolution No. 2019-29 "A Resolution of the Board of Supervisors of the County of Inyo, State of 
California, to Accept Grant Funds From the California Department of Fish and Wildlife, Office of Spill Prevention 
and Response, for Oil Spill Response Equipment".
 



Agenda Request 
Page 2

ALTERNATIVES AND CONSEQUENCES OF NEGATIVE ACTION:
Your Board could choose not to approve this purchase, but this would not be recommended. The California 
Department of Fish and Wildlife has awarded Inyo County these non-matching grant funds for the purchase of oil 
spill prevention response equipment. Not using these allocated grant funds prior to June 30, 2020 would not be in 
the best interest of the County.
 
OTHER AGENCY INVOLVEMENT:
Inyo County Office of Emergency Services, Inyo County Sheriff's Office, Public Works/Road Department, Risk 
Department, Environmental Health Department, California Department of Fish and Wildlife, California Highway 
Patrol and local Volunteer Fire Departments.
 
FINANCING:
The purchase of the oil spill response equipment is included in the 2019-2020 CDFW Oil Spill Prevention 
Response Grant (Budget #623120), Equipment (Object Code #5650)
 
ATTACHMENTS:
1. OSPR - Bid Tabulation
2. Global Diving & Salvage, Inc. Proposal Agreement
 
APPROVALS:
Kelley Williams Created/Initiated - 1/17/2020
Darcy Ellis Approved - 1/17/2020
Kelley Williams Approved - 1/30/2020
Marshall Rudolph Approved - 1/30/2020
Amy Shepherd Approved - 1/30/2020
Sue Dishion Approved - 1/31/2020
Clint Quilter Final Approval - 2/6/2020



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

INYO COUNTY PURCHASING 
P. O. DRAWER N 

INDEPENDENCE, CA 93526 
(760) 878-0293 
(760) 878-0456 

 
 

 
 
 
December 31, 2019 
 
 
To:  Prospective Bidder 
Subj: Bid No. 2019-19 Equipment Trailer 
 
Attached are Instructions & Conditions for Inyo County Emergency Services  
Bid No. 2019-19 One Equipment Trailer with Specified Equipment.  If you would like to 
participate in this bid, please complete the enclosed form and return by the specified date.  
No e-mail or faxes will be accepted. 
 
 
Thank you, 
 
 
Emma Bills, 
Inyo County Assistant Purchasing Agent  
(760) 878-0293 
ebills@inyocounty.us  
 
 



BID NO. 2019-19  PAGE 1 OF 7 

COUNTY OF INYO   (760) 878-0293 
 
MATERIAL OR SERVICES                             
TO BE DELIVERED TO:    INYO COUNTY ROAD YARD 
     for EMERGENCY SERVICES 
     230 SOUTH CLAY STREET  
     INDEPENDENCE, CA 93526 
 
BILLING ADDRESS;   INYO COUNTY EMERGENCY SERVICES 
     P.O. DRAWER N 
     INDEPENDENCE, CA 93526 
     760-878-0120-phone 
       
 
RETURN BIDS TO:                    INYO COUNTY BOARD CLERK 
                                                   COUNTY ADMINISTRATIVE CENTER 
                                                    P.O. BOX N 
     224 NORTH EDWARDS STREET 
                                                   INDEPENDENCE, CA 93526 
 
 
 
   BID OPENING:              DATE:       Wednesday,  January 29, 2020  TIME: 3:30 P.M.  (PDT)      
 
 
Prices quoted FOB DESTINATION UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED. 
MAKE YOUR BID OR QUOTATIONS IN THE SPACE PROVIDED ON THE ATTACHED SHEETS.    
IMPORTANT:  Bid must be sealed with bid number as indicated above on the outside of the envelope.     
Read the Instructions and Conditions before making your Bid or Quotation. 
 
                                                                 INSTRUCTIONS & CONDITIONS 
 
1. All prices and notations must be typewritten or written in ink.  No erasures permitted.  Mistakes may be crossed out        

and corrections made adjacent and must be initialed in ink by person signing quotation. 
 
2. State brand or make on each item.  If quoting an article exactly as specified, the words “or equal” must be stricken out 

by the bidder.  If quoting on other than make, model or brand specified, the manufacturer’s name and the catalogue 
number must be given, or descriptive cut and information attached to the quotations. 

 
3. Quote on each item separately.  Prices should be stated in units specified herein. 
 
4. Each quotation must be in a separate sealed envelope with bid number, on outside, and must be submitted to the 

Inyo County Board Clerk, not later than the hour and day specified hereon, at which time it will be publicly opened 
and read.  A properly addressed and bid numbered envelope, without postage, is included for your convenience. 

 
5.   Time of delivery is a part of the consideration and must be stated in definite terms, and must be adhered to.  If time 

varies on different items, the bidder shall so state in the column provided, opposite each item. 
 
6. Terms of less than 10 days for cash discount will be considered as net. 
 
7. All quotations must be signed with the Firm’s name and by a responsible officer or employee.  Obligations assumed 

by such signature must be fulfilled. 
 
8. No charge for packing, drayage, or for any other purpose will be allowed over and above the prices quoted on this 

sheet. 
 
9. The right is reserved, unless otherwise stated, to accept or reject any or all quotations, or any part thereof, either 

separately or as a whole, or, to waive any informality in a bid. 
 
10. Samples of items, when required, must be furnished free of expense to the County of Inyo and if not destroyed by    

tests, will upon request be returned at the bidders expense. 
 
11. In case of default by the vendor, the County of Inyo may procure the articles or service from other sources. 
 
12. Cost of transportation, handling, and/or inspection on deliveries or offers for delivery, which do not meet the 

specifications will be for the account of the vendor. 
 



BID NO. 2019-19  PAGE 2 OF 7 

 
13. The vendor shall hold the County of Inyo, its officers, agents, servants and employees, harmless from liability of any 

nature or kind on account of use of any copyrighted, or uncopyrighted composition, secret process, patented or 
unpatented invention, article or appliance furnished or used under this quotation. 

 
 
14. The vendor will not be held liable for failure or delay in fulfillment if hindered or prevented by fire, strikes, or Acts of 

God. 
 
15. Quotations are subject to acceptance at any time within 30 days after opening same, unless otherwise stipulated. 
 
16. Verify your quotations before submission as they cannot be withdrawn, or corrected, after being opened. 
 
17. Return this sheet whether or not you quote a price.  If you do not quote, state your reason, otherwise your name may 

be removed from the mailing list. 
 
18. Amounts paid for transportation of property to the County of Inyo are exempt from Federal Transportation Tax.  An 

exemption certificate is not required where the shipping papers show the consignee as County of Inyo, as such 
papers may be accepted by the carrier as proof of the exempt character of the equipment. 

 
19.         There is a contracting preference of 5% for small business enterprises and 8% for local businesses available 

for this Request for Proposals (bids).  To be eligible for the preferences, a small business enterprise must 
submit proof of state registration as a SBE with its bid and a local business must provide certification that it 
is a local business as defined by Inyo County Code §6.06.020 (b) with its bid. 

 
 
 
THE FOLLOWING MUST BE FILLED IN BY THE BIDDER IN SUBMITTING HIS BID: 
 
 
DATED AT _____________________________________________________ (CITY & STATE) 
 
 
_____________________________________________________, 20________ 
 
 
CASH DISCOUNT TERMS ________________________________________ 
 
 
      To the County of Inyo:  We (I) hereby agree to furnish the articles and/or services, 
      at the prices and terms stated subject to the instructions and conditions set forth 
      in this bid. 
 
 
 
NAME OF COMPANY ______________________________________________________ 
 
 
NAME OF COMPANY REPRESENTATIVE (PRINTED)_____________________________________ 
 
 
COMPANY REPRESENTATIVE SIGNATURE____________________________________  
 
 
STREET ADDRESS _________________________________________________ 
 
 
CITY AND STATE  _________________________________________________ 
 
 
PHONE NUMBER ____________________________                        
 
FAX NUMBER   ______________________________ 
 
 
 
 



BID NO. 2019-19  PAGE 3 OF 7 

One (1) Enclosed Equipment Trailer With Specified Equipment Included 
 
 

Table 1 

Specifications for Equipment Trailer 

Custom Built  7’ x 16’ Enclosed Cargo Trailer, 78” interior height, rounded roof, flat front  

Minimum ¼" plywood interior sidewall with finished surface  
Undercoated exterior grade ¾" plywood floor 

Undercoating on complete chassis  

Vapor barrier underbelly 

16: o/c stud walls 

24" o/c floor cross member frame 

Fiberglass front cap 

Aluminum roof and cove 

Side vents (one on each side of trailer or roof vent) 

Aluminum fenders (thickness should be 3/16')  

Lighted license plate holder 

Front stone guard 

Electric brakes with breakaway switch and battery  

GVRW 7000 lbs. (minimum) 

Doors  Double rear door with full length cam bar  

Side door near front 

Both doors fitted with pad lock securing mechanism 

Electrical  12 volt dome lights with wall switch  

7‐way connector 

D.O.T. compliant exterior lighting 

D.O.T. trailer approved wiring 

Double insulated wiring 

Suspension  Tandem Axels 

EZ lube hubs torsion axles 

Tires  15" radial tires 

5‐bolt E‐coated wheels  

Wheel tire covers 

½" wood tire parking pads  
Wheel chocks 
Spare tire and wheel with inside mount 

Color  White exterior with: 

"Oil Spill Response Equipment Funded by: Oil Spill Prevention and Response" 
stenciled in red 6" letters on 2 sides 

2‐digit trailer ID number stenciled on back of trailer in 6" black numbers  

2‐digit trailer ID number stenciled on top of trailer in 36" black numbers 

Tongue  Triangular style trailer tongue and receiver, receiver hitch for a 2 " ball 
Heavy Duty Tongue jack with stand and sand pad 

D.O.T. safety chains 

Warranty  3 Year Standard Manufactures Warranty 
5 Year Axle Standard Manufactures Warranty 
20 Year Leak Manufactures Warranty 

 



BID NO. 2019-19  PAGE 4 OF 7 

 

TABLE 2 

Standard Oil Response Containment Boom Specifications 

 

Freeboard  2.5" 

Draft  4" 

Overall Height  6.5" 

Section Length  50' 1,500ft 

Fabric  22 oz./sq.yd PVC Coated Nylon Fabric 

Color  Yellow or International Orange 

End Connectors  ASTM "Z" (F 962‐04) or ASTM Slide (F 2438‐04) 
(style of connectors TBD) 

With Stainless Steel Toggle Pins 

Flotation  100 % Cylindrical Rolled Polyethylene micro or closed cell foam, with tapered ends 

Fully sealed floatation cambers 

Max. 14" fabric fold between flotation cambers  

RF Welded Seams 

Fold Point  Center of fold points to be every 6 ½' 

Anchor Points  ¾" eye minimum, located at water line on each end 

connector & one at mid section, in an appropriate place of 

choosing 

Ballast Material  1/4" Galvanized Chain 

Bridle  An ASTM End Plate with ½" x 6' Poly Rope lead, one end to be 

finished with thimble connected to tow plate & 6" soft eye spliced 

into other end. 

Warranty  Standard Manufacturer's Commercial Warranty 

TABLE 3 

Standard Storm Drain Containment Boom Specifications 

Overall Height  Bilge/Storm Drain Absorbent Boom 32" x 6” 

Section Length  20 per case 

TABLE 4 

Standard Sorbent Boom Specifications 

Overall Height  5" ‐ 8" 

Section Length  120' up to 720ft 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



BID NO. 2019-19  PAGE 5 OF 7 

TABLE 5 
Boom Tool Box Specifications 

Tool Box  1  Heavy‐duty poly toolbox. 24" length or larger if necessary to fit all tools 

Wrenches  2  8" crescent wrench 

Pliers  1  8" standard plier 

Hammer  1  16 oz. claw hammer 

Clamps  2  4" C‐clamp 

Screwdriver  2  Flathead screwdriver, small and large 

Shackles  4  2 3/8" SPA galvanized shackles, 2 ½" SPA galvanized shackles 

Knife  1  Utility knife with extra blade set 

Flashlight  1  Waterproof floatable flashlight with 2 D‐cell batteries 

Hardware  6  Hardware set including: 5/16" x 1 ¼" SS bolts, 2 flat washers, nylock nuts 

PVC  4  PVC pipe 6"x6' 

Wire  1  50' roll chicken wire or mesh fencing 

Stakes  10  6' t‐post stakes and t‐post pounder 

Kit  1  Plug and Patch Kit 

Hacksaw  1  12in. High Tension Hacksaw 

Wire/Bolt Cutters  1  36' Bolt Cutter 

Generator  1  Gasoline Powered Electric Start Portable Generator 

Sand bags  30  14” X 26" 

Shovel  2  Square Point Digging Shovels 

TABLE 6 

PPE Gear Specifications 

Storage bag  Reusable waterproof storage bag large enough to hold all 1 set of PPE 

Hard hat  Hard hat with ratcheting head band 

Boots  16" PVC steel toe work boots, size 11 ASTM F2413‐05 M I/75 C/75 compliant 

Glove liners  Nitrile glove liners, 1 box of 100, large size 

Gloves  PVC gloves, 1 dozen, 12" gauntlet, size 11 (large) 

Work gloves  Leather work gloves, 2 pair, large size 

Safety glasses  2 pair, meeting ANSI and OSHA specifications 

Ear plugs  6 pair 

Tyvek suits  Full tyvek suit without hood, 2 pair 

Tape  Duct tape, 2 rolls 

TABLE 7 

Specifications for Decontamination Equipment 

Wash Tubs  2 Galvanized wash tubs 

Detergent  Degreaser detergent for decontamination 

Brushes  2 decontamination scrub brushes with long handles 

Waste Bags  1 case of 100 bags, 33" x 40", 4 mil 

Visqueen  1 roll of visqueen 

Tarps  2 drop tarps, 8' x 10' 

Bucket  1 5‐gallon plastic bucket 

TABLE 8 

Specifications for Spill Absorbent Material 

Pads  Heavy Weight Absorbent pads, 1 bag of 100 pads. 
 
 
 
 



BID NO. 2019-19  PAGE 6 OF 7 

 

TABLE 9 
Specifications for Spill Absorbent Material 

Snare  Absorbent snares, 2 bags, 30 snares per bag 

TABLE 10 
Miscellaneous Equipment Specifications 

First Aid Kit  Meeting the requirements for at least 10 people 

Fire Extinguishers  2 5‐pound class ABC fire extinguishers, mounted in trailer interior, one near the front 

and one near the rear. 

MSDS Book  A binder containing MSDS for common oil products including gasoline, diesel, home 

heating oil, motor oil, jet fuel, fuel oil, IFO, bunker fuel, and crude oil. Also contains 

emergency contact numbers for spill, including the National Response Center (1‐800‐

424‐8802) 

IMPORTANT INFORMATION 

Include California Sales Tax 

Include Delivery Fee  

Trailer and equipment must be delivered before May 15, 2020 

 
 
 
Mail Bids to: 
 
County of Inyo Administration 
P.O. Drawer N 
224 N. Edwards Street 
Independence, CA  92526 
 
Deliver to: 
 
Inyo County Road Yard 
230 Clay Street 
Independence, CA  93526 
 
Kelley Williams‐ Emergency Services Manager 
County of Inyo Office of Emergency Services 
kwilliams@inyocounty.us 
(760) 878‐0120 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



BID NO. 2019-19  PAGE 7 OF 7 

 
 
 
NOTE: YOUR NAME & ADDRESS (NOT HANDWRITTEN) MUST APPEAR ON THE ENVELOPE 

WHEN RETURNING YOUR BID.   ENVELOPES WITHOUT A RETURN ADDRESS WILL BE     
DISPOSED OF WITHOUT BEING OPENED. 

 
 
  Subtotal __________ 
  
 Sales Tax (7.75%) __________  
     
 Shipping Charge __________ 
 
 
 Total __________ 
 
 
Delivery will be made in _________days after receipt of order.  
 
 
Bid prices will remain valid and in effect through ________________________ 
 
Indicate any exception to the bid:  
___________________________________________________________________________ 
 
___________________________________________________________________________ 
 
     
 
 
  
 

















County of Inyo

Clerk of the Board
 

DEPARTMENTAL - ACTION REQUIRED
 
MEETING:  February 11, 2020 

FROM:  Assistant Clerk of the Board 
 
SUBJECT:  Approval of Board of Supervisors Meeting Minutes 
 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:
Request Board approve the minutes of the regular Board of Supervisors meeting of February 4, 2020.
 
SUMMARY/JUSTIFICATION:
The Board is required to keep minutes of its proceedings. Once the Board has approved the minutes as 
requested, the minutes will be made available to the public via the County’s webpage, www.inyocounty.us.

BACKGROUND/HISTORY OF BOARD ACTIONS: 
N/A
 
ALTERNATIVES AND CONSEQUENCES OF NEGATIVE ACTION:
N/A
 
OTHER AGENCY INVOLVEMENT:
N/A
 
FINANCING:
N/A
 
ATTACHMENTS:

 
APPROVALS:
Darcy Ellis Created/Initiated - 2/4/2020
Darcy Ellis Final Approval - 2/4/2020



County of Inyo

Agricultural Commissioner - Cannabis
 

TIMED ITEMS - ACTION REQUIRED
 
MEETING:  February 11, 2020 

FROM:  Nathan Reade 
 
SUBJECT:  Ordinance Amending Section 5.40.070 of the Inyo County Code 
 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:
Request Board approve an ordinance titled, “An Ordinance of the Board of Supervisors, County of Inyo, State of 
California, Amending Subsections 5.40.070A.2,  5.40.070A.5A, 5.40.070A.5C, 5.40.070A.5F, and 
5.40.070A.5G of the Inyo County Code."
 
SUMMARY/JUSTIFICATION:
The Board of Supervisors made several amendments to Inyo County code sections dealing with commercial 
cannabis activities in 2019.  Some of the amendments made in May of 2019 meant to reallocate licenses from 
certain activity types and cannabis licensing zones to others were omitted during a later revision in November of 
2019.

This amendment would retain the changes made in November 2019 to Inyo County code section 5.40.070 that 
added non-storefront retail license types, while amending the current code section to include the earlier license 
reallocation actions made by your board in May of 2019.

BACKGROUND/HISTORY OF BOARD ACTIONS: 
Your board made amendments on two occasions to section 5.40.070 of the Inyo County Code in 2019.  The first 
amendment, passed in May of 2019, reallocated certain license types throughout the cannabis licensing zones.  
The second amendment, passed in November of 2019, added the non-storefront retail license type to the 
cannabis activities allowed in Inyo County, as well as allocated nine such licenses to certain cannabis licensing 
zones throughout Inyo County.  During the latter amendment certain changes made in the earlier amendment 
were omitted.

Your board considered this item previously at the February 4, 2020 meeting and scheduled approval and 
enactment for today's meeting.
 
ALTERNATIVES AND CONSEQUENCES OF NEGATIVE ACTION:
Your board could leave the code in its current state but that would omit all license reallocation actions passed in 
May of 2019.  One of the license types in cannabis licensing zone 5A that were added in May of 2019, but later 
erroneously removed in November of 2019, are currently under consideration.  This license could not be issued 
per the code in its current state.
 



Agenda Request 
Page 2

OTHER AGENCY INVOLVEMENT:

 
FINANCING:
If this amendment is not approved, Inyo County may realize reduced fees and taxes associated with commercial 
cannabis activity.
 
ATTACHMENTS:
1. Proposed Ordinance Amending 5.40.070 
 
APPROVALS:
Nathan Reade Created/Initiated - 1/28/2020
Darcy Ellis Approved - 1/28/2020
Nathan Reade Approved - 1/28/2020
Marshall Rudolph Final Approval - 1/30/2020



ORDINANCE XXXX

AN ORDINANCE OF THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS, COUNTY OF INYO, 
STATE OF CALIFORNIA, AMENDING SUBSECTIONS 5.40.070A.2,  

5.40.070A.5A, 5.40.070A.5C, 5.40.070A.5F, AND 5.40.070A.5G
OF THE INYO COUNTY CODE

WHEREAS, The State of California legalized the recreational use of cannabis and 
subsequently consolidated laws applicable to recreational use with those for medical use 
in the Medicinal and Adult-Use Cannabis Regulation and Safety Act (MAUCRSA); and

WHEREAS, the MAUCRSA preserves that authorities of local public agencies to 
regulate commercial cannabis activity more stringently than required by state law; and

WHEREAS, The Inyo County Board of Supervisors approved the enactment of Chapter 
5.40 to the Inyo County Code and subsequently modified certain sections of that Chapter;

WHEREAS, certain changes intended to be made with respect to available licenses were 
inadvertently omitted from the Board’s prior modification of Chapter 5.40 and this 
Ordinance is intended to make those intended changes. 

NOW, THEREFORE, the Board of Supervisors, County of Inyo, ordains as follows:

SECTION I:  Subsection 5.40.070A.2 of the Inyo County Code is hereby amended in its 
entirety to read as follows:

"2. Zone 2 shall be comprised of the Second Supervisorial District, as that supervisorial 
district existed at the time of enactment of this Ordinance, excluding the 
unincorporated Inyo County portion of the Second Supervisorial District 
encompassing Tu Su Lane on the west, Early Pond on the south and See Vee Lane on 
the east, which shall be assigned to Zone 1 above. The Commercial Cannabis 
Business Licenses available in Zone 2 shall be as follows:

a. Cultivation Licenses: 2

b. Classification 6 Manufacturing Level 1:  

Combined with Classification 7, 2 total

c. Classification 7 Manufacturing Level 2:  

Combined with Classification 6, 2 total

d. Classification 8 Testing Laboratory: 1

e. Classification 9 Non-Storefront Retail: 1

f. Classification 10 Retailer: 0

g. Classification 11 Distributor: 1

h. Classification 12 Microbusiness: 1”



2

SECTION II:  Subsection 5.40.070A.5A of the Inyo County Code is hereby amended in 
its entirety to read as follows:

“5.A Zone 5A shall be comprised of the area within the Fifth Supervisorial District, as 
that supervisorial district existed at the time of enactment of this Ordinance, 
bounded by: on the north, the Fourth Supervisorial District; on the east, from 
Owenyo Lone Pine Road and Dolomite Loop Road to Highway 136 between 
Owenyo Lone Pine Road and Highway 395; and Highway 395 south to the 
intersection of Cottonwood Creek Road; on the south, westward from 
Cottonwood Creek Road, along Cottonwood Creek, to Horseshoe Meadows 
Road. to the end of Horseshoe Meadows Road and due west approximately 2.6-
miles to the County line. The Commercial Cannabis Business Licenses available 
in Zone 5A shall be as follows:

i. Cultivation Licenses: 2

j. Classification 6 Manufacturing Level 1:  1

k. Classification 7 Manufacturing Level 2:  0

l. Classification 8 Testing Laboratory: 1

m. Classification 9 Non-Storefront Retail: 1

n. Classification 10 Retailer: 1

o. Classification 11 Distributor: 1

p. Classification 12 Microbusiness: 1”

SECTION III:  Subsection 5.40.070A.5C of the Inyo County Code is hereby amended in 
its entirety to read as follows:

“5C. Zone 5C shall be comprised of the area Within the Fifth Supervisorial District, as 
that supervisorial district existed at the time of enactment of this Ordinance, 
bounded by: on the north, the southern boundary of Zone 5B, also being the 
southern line of Township 19 South M.D.B & M, and extended along the 
southern boundary of Zone 5D approximately 5-miles; on the east, the western 
boundary of the China Lake Naval Weapons Station; on the south, the County 
line; and, on the west, the County line to the boundary of Zone 5B. The 
Commercial Cannabis Business Licenses available in Zone 5C shall be as 
follows:

a. Cultivation Licenses: 5

b. Classification 6 Manufacturing Level 1:  1

c. Classification 7 Manufacturing Level 2:  0

d. Classification 8 Testing Laboratory: 1

e. Classification 9 Non-Storefront Retail: 2

f. Classification 10 Retailer: 2

g. Classification 11 Distributor: 1

h. Classification 12 Microbusiness: 3”



3

SECTION IV:  Subsection 5.40.070A.5F of the Inyo County Code is hereby amended in 
its entirety to read as follows:

“5F. Zone 5F shall be comprised of the area within the Fifth Supervisorial District, as 
that supervisorial district existed at the time of enactment of this Ordinance, 
bounded by: on the north; by the southern boundary of Zone 4; and on the east, 
the Nevada State line south to the northern crest of the Nopah mountain range 
and south along the crest of the Nopah mountain range to the County line; and on 
the south, the County line to the western boundary of Death Valley National 
Park; and, on the west, the western boundary of Death Valley National Park to 
the southern boundary of Zone 4. The Commercial Cannabis Business Licenses 
available in Zone 5F shall be as follows:

a. Cultivation Licenses: 10

b. Classification 6 Manufacturing Level 1:  

Combined with Classification 7, 5 total

c. Classification 7 Manufacturing Level 2:  

Combined with Classification 6, 5 total 

d. Classification 8 Testing Laboratory: 1

e. Classification 9 Non-Storefront Retail: 1

f. Classification 10 Retailer: 1

g. Classification 11 Distributor: 2

h. Classification 12 Microbusiness: 2”

SECTION V:  Subsection 5.40.070A.5G of the Inyo County Code is hereby amended in 
its entirety to read as follows:

“5G. Zone 5G shall be comprised of the area within the Fifth Supervisorial District, as 
that supervisorial district existed at the time of enactment of this Ordinance, 
bounded by: on the north and east, the intersection of northern crest of the Nopah 
mountain range and the Nevada State line south along the State line to the Inyo 
County line; on the south,  the County line to the boundary of Zone 5F; and, on 
the west, the crest of the Nopah mountain range northward to the intersection 
with the Nevada State line. The Commercial Cannabis Business Licenses 
available in Zone 5G shall be as follows:

a.  Cultivation Licenses:

1. 4 for cultivation activities of 5,000 square feet or less; 
and

2. 11 for cultivation activities including those greater than 
5,000 square feet.

b. Classification 6 Manufacturing Level 1:  

Combined with Classification 7, 6 total

c. Classification 7 Manufacturing Level 2:  

Combined with Classification 6, 6 total 



4

d. Classification 8 Testing Laboratory: 1

e. Classification 9 Non-Storefront Retail: 0

f. Classification 10 Retailer: 1

g. Classification 11 Distributor: 2

h. Classification 12 Microbusiness: 6”

SECTION VI. Severability
If any section, subsection, sentence, clause, or phrase of this ordinance is for any reason held to 
be invalid or unconstitutional by a decision of any court of competent jurisdiction, such a 
decision shall not affect the validity of the remaining portions of this ordinance. The Board of 
Supervisors hereby declares that it would have passed this ordinance, and each and every 
section, subsection, sentence, clause, or phrase not declared invalid or unconstitutional without 
regard to whether any portion of this ordinance would be subsequently declared invalid or 
unconstitutional.

SECTION VII. Effective date.
This Ordinance shall take effect and be in full force and effect thirty (30) days after its 
adoption.  Before the expiration of fifteen (15) days from the adoption thereof, a summary of 
this Ordinance shall be published once in a newspaper of general circulation printed and 
published in the County of Inyo, State of California in accordance with Government Code 
Section 25124(b).  The Clerk of the Board is hereby instructed and ordered to so publish a 
summary of this Ordinance together with the names of the Board voting for and against same.

PASSED AND ADOPTED this _______ day of _______, 2020 by the following vote of the 
Inyo County Board of Supervisors:

AYES: 
NOES: 
ABSTAIN: 
ABSENT: 

_______________________________
Rick Pucci, Chairperson

ATTEST:   Clint Quilter
      Clerk to the Board

By:   ______________________________________
Darcy Ellis, Assistant



County of Inyo

Agricultural Commissioner - Cannabis
 

TIMED ITEMS - ACTION REQUIRED
 
MEETING:  February 11, 2020 

FROM:  Nathan Reade 
 
SUBJECT:  Consideration of Commercial Cannabis Business Licenses 
 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:
Request Board: A) conduct a public hearing on the consideration of county commercial cannabis licenses for 
retail classification licenses in cannabis zone 5A, microbusiness classification licenses in cannabis zone 5E, 
cultivation in excess of 5,000 sq. ft. classification licenses in zone 5G, and distribution classification licenses in 
zone 5G; B) conditionally approve those applications that exceeded the 80% minimum threshold as set forth in 
Inyo County code section 5.40.090(H) and authorize issuance of licenses contingent on the applicant paying the 
fees established, and applicants obtaining all applicable permits and licenses required by the County and the 
State of California including payment of all required fees and taxes; and C) deny those applications that failed to 
meet minimum requirements.
 
SUMMARY/JUSTIFICATION:
On June 10, 2019, the window for acceptance of commercial cannabis license applications reopened for all 
available commercial cannabis activities.  Applications were received for retail activities in zone 5A, 
microbusiness activities in zone 5E, cultivation activities in excess of 5,000 square feet in zone 5G,and 
distribution activities in zone 5G.  County staff has been working together and with the applicants since that time 
to ensure the applications are complete and assess the final proposals.  Of the 6 applications received, 5 moved 
forward to the final round of scoring.  Applications were scored based on a point system that considered the 
following criteria:

    a.    Adequacy of the security plan
    b.    Adequacy of the operating plan
    c.    Appropriateness of site location
    d.    Proposed measures to mitigate potential negative impacts to the community
    e.    Environmental considerations including water sources
    f.     Residency considerations
    g.    Community benefit plan 
    h.    Any prior or existing operation of a commercial cannabis business subject to this chapter

Statistics for this group of applications are outlined below:

Zone 5A - Retail Activities

Available Licenses: 1



Agenda Request 
Page 2

Applications Received: 2
Complete Applications: 1
Incomplete Applications: 1 

Zone 5E - Microbusiness Activities

Available Licenses:   1
Applications Received:  1
Complete Applications:  1
Incomplete Applications:  0

Zone 5G - Cultivation Activities (>5,000 sq. ft.)

Available Licenses:   6
Applications Received:  2
Complete Applications:   2
Incomplete Applications:   0

Zone 5G - Distribution Activities

Available Licenses:   2
Applications Received:   1 
Complete Applications:  1
Incomplete Applications:  0

The following is a summary of the scoring for these proposals:

Zone 5A - Retail Activities

Applicant: Ascent Supply Company, LLC
Score: Incomplete application, unable to assess

Applicant: The Lonely Pine, LLC dba Urbn Leaf
Score: 1,232 out of 1,375* (90%)

Zone 5E - Microbusiness Activities 

Applicant: Pinnacle Cannabis
Score: 1,300 out of 1,585* (82%)

Zone 5G - Cultivation Activities (>5,000 sq. ft.)

Applicant: Desert Greens, LLC (Application #1)
Score: 1,272 out of 1,585* (80%)

Applicant: Desert Greens, LLC (Application #2)
Score: 1,272 out of 1,585* (80%)

Zone 5G - Distribution Activities

Applicant: Desert Greens, LLC
Score: 1,096 out of 1,375* (80%)

*Note that the maximum score for application types that include a cultivation component is 1,580 and all others is 



Agenda Request 
Page 3

1,370.

Inyo County Code Section 5.40.090(H) requires that a cannabis application receive a minimum score of 80% in 
order for a license to be issued. Two of the applications brought to your board today do not meet this 
requirement. 

BACKGROUND/HISTORY OF BOARD ACTIONS: 

 
ALTERNATIVES AND CONSEQUENCES OF NEGATIVE ACTION:
Your board could choose to adjust scoring to change the outcome of the staff recommendations or decide to 
deny all applications.
 
OTHER AGENCY INVOLVEMENT:

 
FINANCING:
If 5 licenses are issued, license fee revenue of $44,250 annually is projected.  Additional sales tax revenue may 
also be generated.
 
ATTACHMENTS:
1. Application Scoring Jan 2020
2. January 2020 License Availablity
 
APPROVALS:
Nathan Reade Created/Initiated - 1/22/2020
Darcy Ellis Approved - 1/24/2020
Nathan Reade Approved - 1/24/2020
Denelle Carrington Approved - 1/24/2020
Marshall Rudolph Final Approval - 1/24/2020



CouNry or lNyo
CouNtv Cor,rrlnencnL CANr.u,sts PERMITTTNG Orrtcr
207 WEsr SourH STREET

BrsHoP, CA 935,l 4
760.873.7860

CommeRctAt CANNABTS BusrNEss PERMTT AppucATtoN Sconrruo Srrer

Section I - License Type ond Stotus

l-l Complete lll lncomplete

Notes:

Emergency contact information missing

Sedion 2 - Contocl lnformotion

lil Complete fl lncomplete

Noles:

l-l Complete
Section 3 - Locotion lnformotion ond Zoning Conformity

llllncomplete

Notes:

Property owner authorization not included. Authorization signed by lessee not lessor. Lessor
indicates that they do not authorize commercial cannabis activity on this property.

Sections4-9Scorinq

*The weight of eoch section moy be determined by Boord of Supervisors in open session, independent ond without
knowledge of the scoring criterio ossigned io eoch opplicotion.

Applicotion Version:r lnitiol Applicolion f-l nevised Applicotion
Business Nome:

Ascent Supply Company
Dole Received:

81912019

Secfion
4

Seclion
5

Secfion
6

Seclion
7

Seclion
I

Seclion
9

Totcl Applicolion Score

Review Ponel
Scoring 120 273 N/A 130 345 282 1 150

Weighl Assigned lo
Seclion Grond Totol Applicolion Score

Score Afler Sestion
Weishlins 120 273 N/A 130 345 282 1 1 50



Cornmrncnt CANNABts BusrNEss PERtvrr Appttcnrtoru Scontuc Surrr (Corurtt,lueo)

The following sections will be scored on meril qnd when opplicoble, relqtive lo other oppliconts for the some license type(s)

in the some zones. Eoch question will hqve o point volue ronge listed, with higher scores ossigned to better responses.

SecrroN 4-Srcunrrv PUN

Applicotion queslions include the following:

Attoch your security plon to this opplicotion os "Aftochment 4". Provide, ot o minimum, informofion thot will onswer the

f ollowing:

l. Describe ony video surveillonce syslem(s) thot will be used on sile ond specify the monufocturer ond model of
eoch. Also include whot qreos will be under this surveillonce ond length of lime thol recordings will be qrchived

ond ovoiloble, ond ony other perlinent informolion.
2. Describe ony olorm systems thot you intend to use including monufocturer, model, ond service provider if

opplicoble.
3. Describe how cosh on premises will be secured.
4. Describe ony security fencing or other perimeter security methods thqt will be used on site including dimensions ond

moleriols used.
5. lf ony security personnel ore to be used, exploin how personnel ore to be used ond include number of personnel

qnd how personnel will be troined/certified. lf security is provided by o controctor, include nome ond contocl
informotion for the compony.

6. Describe focility lighting ond exploin how it will help provide security, toking into occount mointoining consislency

with lnyo Couniy Generql Plon requirements for lighting.
7. Describe ony other security meosures not covered by the previous seclions.

Notes:

2

Seclion 4 - Security Plon Point Volue Points Assigned

l. Surveillonce syslem odequocy (Sheriff) o-2s 23

2. Alorm system odequocy (Sheriff) o-2s 23

3. Cosh security (Sheriff) o-25 10

4. Perimeter/security fencing odequocy (Sheriff) o-25 24

5. Security personnel use ond lroining (Sheriff) o-25 10

6. Security lighting odequocy (Sheriff) o-25 20

7. Additionol security meosures (Sheriff) o-25 10

TOTAL o-175 120



SrcrroN 5 - OprnlrroNs Pnr

Applicotion queslions include the following:

Attoch your operotions plon to this opplicotion os "Attochment 5". Provide, ot o minimum. informotion thot will onswer the

following:

1 . Description of products ondf or services to be provided.
2. lf ony improvemenls other construclion ore proposed, describe lhis octivity ond identify the type of permits

needed.
3. Describe the meosures /eqvipmentfsoflwore your business will use to ensure Colifornio Trock ond Troce System

complionce.
4. Provide o detqiled lisl of ony toxic or f lommoble moteriols, pesticides, fertilizers or other moteriols thot moy be

used by lhe business. Also describe how these moteriols will be stored lo mointoin securily or sofety. Attoch ony
opplicoble permits.

5. Provide o detoiled description of how connobis wosle will be disposed of including bul not limited to orgonic
woste produced by cultivqtion ond horvesling oclivilies, monufqcluring woste, or woste produced by retoil
esloblishmenis thqt contoin, or hove contoined, connobis ond/or connobis producls.

6. List equipment ftol will be used to meosure or weight connobis products for sole. lf weighmoster lows opply to
your business, indicote how you will conform to stqte lows ond regulotions.

7. Will connobis food products be produced on sire? lf so, exploin how this will occur qnd with whot equipment.
8. Provide q ihree yeor pro-formo slotement.

Notes:

Seclion 5 - Operotions Plon Point Volue Points Assigned

l. Adequocy of improvements ond permit stoius 0-40 40

2. Trock ond Troce complionce system odequocy 0-40 40

3. Hozordous mqteriols (EH ond Ag) 0-40 40

4. Storoge sofety ond security (EH ond Ag) 0-40 40

5. Wosle disposol plon odequocy (EH ond Ag) 0-40 35

6. Adequocy of weighls & meqsures equipment ond proctices 0-40 40

7. Adequocy of equipment to proposed octivity o-40 3B

f fto Formo lncluded TOTAL 0-280 273

3



Secrrou 6 - CutrrvnrroN PnH

Applicotion queslions include lhe following:

Attoch your cultivotion plon to this opplicoiion os "Attochment 6". Provide, ot o minimum. informotion thol will onswer the

following:

l. Provide q detqiled description of the existing lond use qnd surrounding lond uses (e.9, residentiol, commerciol,
ogricuhure crop production, vocont lond, rongelond, etc.).

2. Describe how pest monogement will be conducled including if pesticides will be used qnd if employees will be
using pesticides.

3. Describe how crops will be fertilized ond the products to be used for this process.

4. Describe ony processing thot will occur on site, including bul not limited to, lrimming, drying, curing or groding.

Notes:

l. Surrounding lond use compolibiliry 0-60

2. Pest monogement plon odequocy 0-30

3. Fertilizer plon odequocy 0-30

4. Adequocy of processing equipment ond focilities 0-30

o-605. Overoll plon odequocy

0-2r 0 0TOTAL

4



SecrroN Z - CommuNrv lmplcr MrrclrroN Mensunes

Applicotion queslions include lhe following:

To complete this section ottoch your community impoct mitigolion plon to this opplicolion os "Affochmenl 7", Provide, ot o
minimum, informotion thoi will qnswer the following:

l. Describe qny meosures you intend to implement thql would ovoid impocts to fire qnd low enforcement ogencies
ond reduce cqllouts from these entities.

2. Exploin whot your business inlends to do io minimize other types of impocts on surrounding communilies.
3. Describe ony orrqngements or ogreements reoched wirh locol ogencies, service districts, nongovernmentol groups,

or olher community reloled groups fo minimize impocts to the locql community. Attoch copies of ony qgreements.
lf no wriften ogreement exists, indicote whot benefits you ore committing to provide.

Noles:

l. Meosures fo ovoid impocls lo fire ond low enforcement 0-60 55

2. Meosures to reduce olher impocts lo surrounding communities 0-60 55

3. Agency ogreements or slolemenl of commitmenis business would ogree io 0-60 20

TOTAL 0-r 80 130

5



Srcrtou 8 - ENvrnoNrr,rrt.ttat CoNstoERATtoNS

Applicotion queslions include lhe following:

Attoch on overview covering environmentol considerotions to this opplicotion os "Attochment 8". Provide, ot o minimum,

informcrtion thot will onswer the following:

l. Provide o detqiled description of where woter will be sourced (e.g. well, streqm diversion, public woter system)

ond ottoch ony opplicotion or permit required by the Cqlifornio Stote Woter Resources Control Boord,
Groundwoter Sustoinobility Agency, County Environmentol Heolth Deporlment, Community Service Districl, etc.
Also indicote if recycled woter will be used by the proposed business ond how it will be used.

2. Provide o detqiled description of how qny wostewoter produced will be disposed of, including monufocturing
runoff ond sewoge.

3. Provide o detoiled description of outdoor lighting or olher lighting visible to the outside of the business property
ond whqt meosures will be token to minimize impoct on the public. Also describe how these meosures will meet

lnyo County Generol Plon requiremenls.
4. Provide o detoiled description of venlilotion systems used to prevenl connobis odors or control loxic fumes both

indoor qnd outdoor reloted to the business operotions, if ony.
5. Provide o detoiled descriplion ony dust mitigotion lhot will be implemented on the business site, if ony.
6. Provide o detoiled description ony noise mitigotion thot will be implemenled on the business site, if ony.

Notes:

Seclion 8 - Environmenlol Considerulions Poinl Volue Poinls Assigned

l. Woter source stqius ond feosibility (EH) 0-60 60

2. Wostewoler monqgement odequocy (EH) 0-60 60

3. Outdoor lighting consistency with generol plon ond ony dork skies mitigotion 0-60 55

4, Odor control ond venlilotion syslems 0-60 55

5. Dust conlrol plon odequocy 0-60 60

6. Noise mitigolion plon odequocy 0-60 55

TOTAL 0-360 345

6



SecroN 9 - ComaluNry BrNerr Pul.r

Applicotion queslions include the following:

Attoch your Community Benefit Plon to ihis opplicotion os "Attochment 9". The Plon must provide, ot o minimum.

informotion lhor will onswer the following:

l. Provide q detoiled descripiion of ony communily benefit plon including bul not limited to support of school-reloted
ond communiiy-bosed orgonizotions. Attoch ony documeniolion lhqt con be used to subsiontiqte community
benefit.

2. Describe your strqtegies to recruit ond hire locol employees.
3. Provide o complete list of iobs onticipoted to be creoted by the proposed business, including number of iobs to be

creoted, woge lo be poid for eoch iob clossificotion, ond q shorl description of these posiiions using the following
roble. Attoch odditionol copies if needed.

Notes:

l. Strength of community benefir plon 0-230 173
2. Locol hiring plon/sirotegies o-60 55
3. Woge comporison o-60 54
4. Locol opplicofi (bosed on live sccrn residence oddress, ownership percentoge) 0-30 0

TOTAL 0-380 282

7





CouNry or luyo
CouNrv Cor'u'tencnl CnNNngrs PERMTTTTNG Orrtce
207 WEsr SourH STREET

BrsHoP, CA 935 14
760.873.7860

CotvtmeRctAt CANNABTS BusrNEss PERMTT AppucATroN Sconlruo Sxrer

Section I - License Type ond Stotus

El Complete fl lncomplete

Notes:

Section 2 - Contocl lnformolion

[I Complete f-] lncomplete

Notes:

lilComplete
Section 3 - Locotion lnformotion ond Zoning Conformity

lncomplete

Noles:

Seclions4-9Scorinq

*The weight of eoch section moy be determined by Boord of Supervisors in open session, independent ond without
knowledge of the scoring criterio ossigned to eoch opplicotion.

Applicotion Version:

f lniriolApplicotion f-l Revised Applicolion
Business Nome:

The Lonely Pine LLC dba Urbn Leaf
Doie Received:

8t912019

Seclion
4

Seclion
5

Section
6

Secfion
7

Section
8

Seclion
9

Totol Applicotion Score

Review Ponel
Scoring 164 268 N/A 177 289 334 1232

Weighl Assigned to
Seelion Grond Tolol Applicolion Score

Score Afler Seclion
Weighling 164 268 N/A 177 289 334 1,232



CoMfyrERcrAr CnNNlsrs BustNEss PERMTT AppucATloN ScoRtNG Suerr (Corurtruueo)

The following sections will be scored on merit ond when opplicoble, relotive to other oppliconts for the some license type(s)

in the some zones. Eoch question will hqve o point volue ronge listed, with higher scores ossigned lo belter responses.

SecrtoN 4 - Secuntrv PLnr't

Applicolion queslions include lhe following:

Attoch your security plon to this opplicotion os "Attochment 4". Provide, ot o minimum, informotion thot will onswer the

f ollowing:

I . Describe ony video surveillonce syslem(s) lhot will be used on site ond specify lhe mqnufqcturer ond model of
eoch. Also include whot qreos will be under lhis surveillonce ond length of time thot recordings will be orchived
ond ovoiloble, ond ony other periinenl informolion.

2. Describe ony olorm systems thot you intend to use including monufqcturer, model, ond service provider if
opplicoble.

3. Describe how cosh on premises will be secured.
4. Describe ony security fencing or olher perimeter security methods lhql will be used on site including dimensions ond

moteriqls used.
5. lf ony securiiy personnel qre to be used, exploin how personnel ore to be used ond include number of personnel

ond how personnel will be troined/cerlified. lf security is provided by o controctor, include nqme ond conloct
informotion for the compony.

6. Describe focility lighting ond exploin how it will help provide security, toking into occount mointoining consistency
with lnyo County Generol Plon requirements for lighting.

7. Describe ony other securily meosures nol covered by the previous seclions,

Notes:

2

Seclion 4 - Security Plon Point Volue Points Assigned

l. Surveillonce syslem odequocy (Sheriff) 0-25 24

2. Alorm syslem odequocy (Sheriff) o-25 23

3. Cosh securily (Sheriff) o-25 25

4. Perimeter/security fencing odequocy (Sheriff) o-25 22

5. Securily personnel use qnd lroining (Sheriff) o-25 23

6. Security lighting odequocy (Sheriff) o-25 23

7, Additionol security meosures (Sheriff) o-25 24

TOTAL o-175 164



SecrroN 5 - OprnlrroNs PLIN

Applicotion queslions include the following:

Attoch your operotions plon to this opplicotion os "Attochment 5". Provide, ot o minimum. informotion thot will onswer the
f ollowing:

l. Description of products andf or services to be provided.
2. lf ony improvemenls other construclion ore proposed, describe lhis octivity ond identify the type of permils

needed.
3. Describe lhe meosures f equipment fsoflwore your business will use to ensure Cqlifornio Trock ond Troce System

complionce.
4. Provide o detqiled list of ony toxic or f lommoble moteriols, pesticides, ferlilizers or other moteriols thot moy be

used by lhe business. Also describe how lhese moteriols will be stored to mqintoin security or sofety. Attoch ony
opplicoble permits.

5. Provide o detqiled description of how connobis woste will be disposed of including but not limited lo orgonic
woste produced by cultivotion ond horvesting octivities, mqnufocturing woste, or woste produced by reloil
estqblishments thol contoin, or hove conloined, connobis ondf or connobis products.

6. List equipment lhot will be used to meosure or weight cqnnobis producls for sole. lf weighmoster lows opply to
your business, indicote how you will conform to stote lows ond regulotions.

7. Will connqbis food products be produced on site? lf so, exploin how this will occur qnd with whot equipment.
8. Provide q three yeor pro-formo stotement.

Noles:

3

Seclion 5 - Operolions Plqn Point Volue Poinrs fusigned

l. Adequocy of improvements ond permit stotus 0-40 40
2. Trock ond Troce complionce system odequocy 0-40 40

3. Hozordous moteriols (EH ond Ag) 0-40 35
4. Storoge sofef ond security (EH ond Ag) o-40 35

5. Woste disposol plon odequocy (EH ond Ag) 0-40 40

6. Adequocy of weights & meosures equipment ond proctices 0-40 40
7. Adequocy of equipment to proposed octivity 0-40 38

I f ro Formo lncluded TOTAL 0-280 268



SrcrroN 6 - Currvlrrou PUN

Applicolion queslions include the following:

Attoch your cultivotion plon to this opplicotion os "Attochment 6". Provide, ot q minimum, informoiion thql will onswer lhe

following:

l. Provide o detqiled description of the existing lond use ond surrounding lond uses (e.9. residentiol, commerciol,

ogriculture crop production, vocont lond, rongelond, etc.).
2. Describe how pest monogement will be conducted including if pesticides will be used ond if employees will be

using pesticides.
3. Describe how crops will be fertilized ond the products to be used for this process.

4. Describe ony processing thot will occur on site, including but not limited to, trimming, drying, curing or groding.

Notes:

0-60l. Surrounding lond use comporibility

o-302. Pesl monogement plon odequocy

0-303. Fertilizer plon odequocy

0-304. Adequocy of processing equipment ond focilities

0-605. Overoll plon odequocy

0-210 0TOTAL

4



SECTIoN 7 - CoMMUNITY IMPACT MITIGATIoN MEASURES

Applicolion queslions include the following

To complete ihis section ottoch your community impoct mitigotion plon to this opplicotion os "Attochment 7". Provide, qtg
minimum, informotion thqt will onswer lhe following:

l. Describe ony meqsures you intend lo implement thqt would ovoid impocts to fire ond low enforcement ogencies
qnd reduce collouts from these entities.

2. Exploin whot your business intends to do lo minimize other types of impocts on surrounding communilies.
3. Describe ony orrongemenls or ogreements reoched with locol ogencies, service districts, nongovernmentol groups,

or olher communily reloted groups to minimize impocts to the locql community. Attqch copies of ony ogreements.
lf no writlen ogreemenl exists, indicote whot benefits you ore commilling to provide.

Notes:

l. Meosures to ovoid impocts to fire qnd lqw enforcement 0-60 59

2. Meosures to reduce other impocts to surrounding communities 0-60 60

3. Agency ogreements or stotemeni of commilmenls business would ogree lo 0-60 58

TOTAL 0-r 80 177

5



Srcrrou 8 - ENvrnoNmeNrnL CoNsrornartoNs

Applicolion queslions include the following

Attoch on overview covering environmentol considerotions to ihis opplicotion os "Atiochment 8". Provide, ot o minimum,

informofion thot will onswer the {ollowing:

l Provide o detoiled description of where wqler will be sourced (e.g. well, streom diversion, public woter system)

ond ottoch ony opplicotion or permit required by the Colifornio Slole Woter Resources Control Boord,
Groundwoter Sustoinobility Agency, Counly Environmentol Heqlth Deportmeni, Community Service District, etc.
Also indicote if recycled woter will be used by the proposed business ond how it will be used.

2. Provide o detoiled descripiion of how ony wqstewqter produced will be disposed of, including monufocturing
runoff ond sewoge.

3. Provide o detoiled description of ouldoor lighting or other lighting visible to lhe outside of the business property
ond whqt meqsures will be loken lo minimize impoct on the public. Also describe how these meosures will meel
lnyo County Generol Plon requirements.

4. Provide o detoiled description of ventilotion syslems used to prevenl connobis odors or control toxic fumes both
indoor ond outdoor relqted to the business operotions, if ony.

5. Provide o detoiled description ony dust mitigotion thqt will be implemented on the business sile, if ony.
6. Provide o detoiled description ony noise mitigotion thot will be implemented on the business site, if ony.

Notes:

Seclion 8 - Environmentol Considerolions Point Volue Points Assigned

l. Wqter source stqlus ond feosibility (EH) 0-60 30

2. Wostewoter monogement odequocy (EH) 0-60 20

3. Outdoor lighting consistency with generol plon ond ony dork skies mitigolion 0-60 60

4. Odor conlrol ond venlilolion systems 0-60 60

5. Dusi control plon odequocy 0-60 59

6. Noise mitigotion plon odequocy 0-60 60

TOTAL 0-360 289

6



SrcrroN 9 - ComaluNry BrNrrr PllN

Applicolion queslions include the following:

Attoch your Community Benefit Plqn to this opplicotion os "Attochment 9". The Plon musi provide, ot o minimum.

informotion thor will onswer the following:

'l . Provide o detqiled description of ony community benefit plon including but not limited to support of school-reloted
qnd community-bosed orgonizotions. Attoch ony documenlqlion lhoi con be used to substontiqte community
benefit.

2. Describe your strotegies to recruit ond hire locol employees.
3. Provide o complete list of iobs onticipoled lo be creoted by lhe proposed business, including number of iobs to be

creoted, wqge to be poid for eoch iob clossificotion, ond o short description of these positions using the following
toble. Attoch odditionol copies if needed.

Notes:

l. Strength of community benefit plon 0-230 219
2. Locol hiring plon/strotegies 0-60 55
3. Woge comporison 0-60 60
4. Locol opplicont (bosed on live scon residence oddress, ownership percentoge) 0-30 0

TOTAL 0-380 334

7



CouNry or lNyo
CouNry CoalmrncrnL CaNNnsts PrnrrnrrrNc Orrrcr
207 WEsr SoUTH STREET

BrsHoP, CA 9351 4
760.873.7860

CotvtmenctAt CANNABTS BusrNEss PERMTT AppucATtoN Scontruo Srerr

Section I - License Type ond Stqtus

Ll Complete l--]lncomplete
Notes:

Section 2 - Contoct lnformotion

[Il Complete [--l lncomplete

Noles:

filComplete
Sedion 3 - Locotion lnformotion ond Zoning Conformity

lncomplete

Notes:

Sections4-9Scorinq

*The weight of eoch section moy be delermined by Boord of Supervisors in open session, independent ond without

Applicolion Version:

! tniriolApplicotion lil Revised Applicotion
Business Nome:

Pinnacle Cannabis
Dote Received:

12116119

Seclion
4

Sec'tion
5

Seclion
6

Seclion
7

Secfion
I

Section
9 Tolol Applicolion Score

Review Panel
Scoring 128 271 197 150 298 256 1 300

Weight Assigned lo
Seclion Grond Totol Applicolion Score

Score After Seslion
Weiqhlinq 128 271 197 150 298 256 1,300

knowledge of the scoring criterio ossigned to eoch opplicotion.



CoryrmERctAt CaNNasls BustNEss PERMIT Appt tcattott ScoRlNG SHEET (CoNTINUED)

The following sections will be scored on merit ond when opplicoble, relotive to other oppliconts for the some license type(s)

in the some zones. Eoch question will hove o poinl volue ronge listed, with higher scores ossigned to better responses.

Srcrrou 4 - Secuntrv PLnN

Applicolion queslions include the following:

Attoch your security plon to this opplicotion os "Attochment 4". Provide. ot o minimum, informqtion thot will onswer the

f ollowing:

I . Describe ony video surveillonce system(s) thot will be used on site ond specify the monufocturer ond model of
eoch. Also include whot oreos will be under this surveillqnce ond lenglh of time lhot recordings will be orchived

ond ovoiloble, ond ony other perlinenl informolion.
2. Describe ony olorm syslems thot you intend lo use including monufocturer, model, ond service provider if

opplicoble.
3. Describe how cosh on premises will be secured.
4. Describe ony security fencing or other perimeter securily methods thot will be used on site including dimensions ond

moteriols used.
5, lf ony security personnel ore to be used, exploin how personnel ore to be used ond include number of personnel

ond how personnel will be troined/certified. lf security is provided by o controclor, include nome ond contoct

informqtion for the compony.
6. Describe focility lighting ond exploin how it will help provide security, toking into occount mointoining consistency

with lnyo County Generol Plon requirements for lighting.
7. Describe ony olher security meosures not covered by the previous sections.

Noles:

2

Seclion 4 - Security Plon Point Volue Points Assigned

l. Surveillonce system odequocy (Sheriff) o-2s 20

2. Alorm syslem odequocy (Sheriff) o-25 18

3. Cosh security (Sheriff) o-25 24

4. Perimeler/security fencing odequocy (Sheriff) o-25 28

5. Security personnel use ond lroining (Sheriff) o-25 10

6. Security lighting odequocy (Sheriff) o-25 18

7. Additionol securily meosures (Sheriff) o-25 10

TOTAL o-175 128



SrcrroN 5 - OprnnloNs PLaN

Applicotion queslions include the following:

Attoch your operotions plon to this opplicotion os "Attochment 5". Provide, ot o minimum. informotion thot will onswer the
f ollowing:

1 . Description of products ondf or services to be provided.
2. lf ony improvements other conslruction ore proposed, describe this octivity ond identify the type of permits

needed.
3. Describe the meosures f eqvipmentfsoftwore your business will use to ensure Colifornio Trock ond Troce System

complionce.
4' Provide o deloiled lisl of ony toxic or flommoble moleriols, pesticides, fertilizers or other moteriols thot moy be

used by the business. Also describe how lhese moteriols will be slored to mointoin security or sofety. Attoch ony
opplicoble permils.

5. Provide q deloiled description of how connobis wqste will be disposed of including but not limited to orgonic
woste produced by cultivotion ond horvesling octivities, monufocturing woste, or woste produced by retoil
estoblishmenls thqt contoin, or hove contoined, connobis ondf or connobis products.

6. List equipment thol will be used to meosure or weight connobis products for sqle. lf weighmoster lows opply to
your business, indicote how you will conform to siote lows ond regulotions.

7. Will connqbis food producls be produced on site? lf so, exploin how this will occur ond with whot equipment.
8. Provide o three yeor pro-formo stotement.

Notes:

3

Secfion 5 - Operolions Plon Poinl Volue Poinls Assigned

1. Adequocy of improvements ond permit stotus 0-40 36

2. Trock ond Troce complionce system odequocy 0-40 40
3. Hqzqrdous mqteriols (EH ond Ag) o-40 40
4. Storoge sofety ond security (EH ond Ag) o-40 40
5. Woste disposol plon odequocy (EH ond Ag) 0-40 40
6. Adequocy of weights & meosures equipment ond proctices 0-40 35
7. Adequocy of equipment to proposed octivity o-40 40

f, nto Formo lncluded TOTAL 0-280 271



Secroru 6 - CurnvartoN Prln

Applicction queslions include the following:

Attoch your cultivotion plon to this opplicotion os "Attochment 6". Provide, ot q minimum, informoiion thot will onswer the

f ollowing:

l. Provide o detoiled description of the existing lond use ond surrounding lond uses (e.g. residenriol, commerciol,

ogriculture crop production, voconl lond, rongelond, etc').
2. Describe how pest mqnqgement will be conducted including if pesticides will be used qnd if employees will be

using peslicides.
3. Describe how crops will be fertilized qnd the products to be used for this process.

4. Describe ony processing thot will occur on site, including bul not limited to, trimming, drying, curing or groding.

Notes:

0-60 60l. Surrounding lond use compotibilily

0-30 282. Pest monogement plon odequocy

0-30 283. Fertilizer plon odequocy

0-30 254. Adequocy of processing equipment ond focilities

0-60 565. Overoll plon odequocy

0-2'r0 197TOTAL

4



SrcrtoN 7 - Comruuury l,rnpncr Mrlclrloru Mensunes

Applicotion queslions include the following:

To complele this section ottoch your community impqct mitigotion plon to this opplicotion os "Attochmeni 2". Provide, ot o
minimum, informotion thol will onswer the following:

1. Describe ony meosures you intend to implement thqt would ovoid impocts lo fire ond lqw enforcemenl ogencies
ond reduce collouts from these entities.

2. Exploin whot your business intends to do lo minimize other types of impocts on surrounding communilies.
3. Describe qny orrongemenls or ogreements reoched with locol qgencies, service districts, nongovernmentol groups,

or oiher community reloted groups io minimize impocts to fie locql community. Atoch copies of ony ogreemenls.
lf no written ogreement exisls, indicole whot benefits you ore commilting to provide.

Noles:

l. Meosures to ovoid impocts lo fire qnd low enforcement 0-60 54

2. Meosures to reduce other impocls to surrounding communilies 0-60 54

3. Agency ogreemenls or slotement of commilments business would ogree lo 0-60 42

TOTAL 0-r 80 150

5



SrcrroN 8 - ENvrnoNmeNraL CoNstornattoNs

Applicotion queslions include the following:

Attoch on overview covering environmentol considerotions to this opplicotion os "Attochment 8". Provide, ot o minimum,

informotion thot will onswer the following:

l. Provide q detoiled description of where woler will be sourced (e.g. well, streom diversion, public woter system)

ond qttqch ony opplicotion or permit required by the Colifornio Stoie Woler Resources Control Boord,
Groundwoter Sustqinobility Agency, Counly Environmentql Heqlth Deportmenl, Community Service Districl, etc.
Also indicote if recycled woter will be used by the proposed business ond how it will be used.

2. Provide o detqiled description of how ony wqstewoter produced will be disposed of, including monufocluring
runoff ond sewoge.

3. Provide o detqiled descripiion of outdoor lighting or other lighting visible to the oulside of the business properly
ond whqt meosures will be token to minimize impoct on the public. Also describe how lhese meosures will meet
lnyo County Generol Plon requirements.

4. Provide o detoiled description of venlilolion systems used lo prevent cqnnobis odors or conlrol toxic fumes both
indoor ond ouidoor reloted to the business operotions, if ony.

5. Provide o detoiled description ony dusl mitigolion thqt will be implemenled on ihe business sile, if ony.
6. Provide o deloiled description ony noise miligotion lhot will be implemenied on lhe business site, if ony.

Notes:

Sesfion 8 - Environmental Considemtions Point Volue Points Assigned

l. Woler source stotus ond feosibility (EH) 0-60 45

2. Woslewoter monogement odequocy (EH) 0-60 30

3. Outdoor lighting consistency with generol plon ond ony dork skies mitigolion 0-60 60

4. Odor conlrol ond venlilolion syslems 0-60 55

5. Dusl control plon odequocy o-60 54

6. Noise mitigolion plon odequocy 0-60 54

TOTAL 0-360 298

6



SecloN 9 - Cor'v*uNry BrNrrr PLIN

Applicotion queslions include the following

Attqch your Community Benefit Plon to this opplicotion os "Attochment 9". The Plon must provide, ot o minimum,

informolion thot will qnswer the following:

l. Provide o detqiled descripiion of ony community benefit plon including but not limired to support of school-reloted
ond community-bosed orgonizolions. Attoch ony documentqtion thqt con be used lo substqntiole communily
benef it.

2. Describe your stroiegies to recruil ond hire locol employees.
3. Provide o complete list of iobs onticipoted to be creoted by the proposed business, including number of iobs lo be

creoied, wqge to be poid for eqch iob clossificotion, ond q short description of these posilions using the following
roble. Attoch qdditionol copies if needed.

Notes:

l. Strength of community benefit plon 0-230 138

2. Locol hiring plon/stroiegies 0-60 58

3. Woge comporison 0-60 60

4. Locol oppliconl (bosed on live scon residence oddress, ownership percentoge) 0-30 0

TOTAL 0-380 256

7



CouNrv or lNyo
CouNrv Cor'rmencnl CnNNlsrs PenmmtNo Orrtce
207 WEsr SourH STREFT

BrsHoP, CA 9351 4
760.873.7860

CotvtmencrAt CANNABTS BusrNEss PERMTT AppucATtoN Sconrno Sterr

Applicolion Version:

f-l ln:riolApplicotion El Revised Appticotion
Business Nome:

Desert Greens, LLC (Cultivation APN 048-391-10)
Dole Received:

11312020

Section I - License Type ond Stqtus

fr| Complete fl lncomplete

Noies:

lnitial concerns answered in revision Section 1

Section 2 - Conlqct lnformotion

lil Complete f-]lncomplete

Notes:

filComplete
Section 3 - Locotion lnformotion ond Zoning Conformiiy

lncomplete

Notes:

Revision site plan is acceptable for evaluation. lnitial concerns mitigated, no longer a missing
component.

Sections4-9Scoring

*The weight of eoch section moy be delermined by Boord of Supervisors in open session, independent ond without
knowledge of the scoring criterio ossigned to eoch opplicotion.

Secfion
4

Seclion
5

Seclion
6

Section
7

Seclion
8

Seclion
9

Tolol Applicolion Score

Review Ponel
Scorins 114 228 176 156 265 333 1272

Weight Assigned lo
Seclion Grond Totol Applicolion Score

Score Afler Seclion
Weishtinc 114 228 176 156 265 333 1,272



CoMMERcTAT Clr.rNasrs BusrNEss Prnmr AppHcATroN ScoRtNG SHEET (CoNilNUED)

The following sections will be scored on merit ond when opplicoble, relotive lo olher oppliconts for the some license type(s)

in the some zones. Eoch question will hove o point volue ronge listed, with higher scores ossigned lo betler responses.

SrcrroN4-SrcunnvPLar

Applicolion queslions include lhe following:

Attqch your security plon to this opplicotion os "Attochment 4". Provide, ot o minimum, informotion thot will onswer the

f ollowing:

l. Describe ony video surveillqnce syslem(s) thot will be used on site ond specify the monufqcturer ond model of
eoch. Also include whot oreos will be under this surveillonce ond length of time ihot recordings will be orchived
ond ovoiloble, ond ony other pertinent informotion.

2. Describe ony olorm systems thol you intend to use including monufqcturer, model, ond service provider if
opplicoble.

3. Describe how cosh on premises will be secured.
4. Describe ony security fencing or other perimeter securiiy methods thot will be used on site including dimensions qnd

moteriols used.

5. lf ony security personnel ore to be used, exploin how personnel ore to be used ond include number of personnel

ond how personnel will be troined/certified. lf security is provided by o controctor, include nqme ond conloct
informotion for the compony,

6. Describe focility lighting ond exploin how it will help provide security, loking into occount mointoining consislency
with lnyo County Generol Plon requirements for lighting.

7, Describe ony other security meosures not covered by the previous sections.

Notes:

2

Seclion 4 - Security Plon Point Volue Points Assigned

l. Surveillonce system odequocy (Sheriff) o-25 21

2. Alorm syslem odequocy (Sheriff) o-25 20

3. Cosh securily (Sheriff) o-25 18

4. Perimeler/securily fencing odequocy (Sheriff) o-25 6

5. Securily personnel use ond troining (Sheriff) o-25 12

6. Security lighting odequocy (Sheriff) o-25 18

7, Additionol security meqsures (Sheriff) o-25 19

TOTAL 0-175 114



SrcroN 5 - OprnnrroNs PLIN

Applicolion queslions include the following

Attoch your operotions plon to this opplicotion os "Attochment 5". Provide, ot o minimum, informotion thot will onswer lhe

f ollowing:

1. Description of products ondf or services to be provided.
2. lf ony improvemenls other construction ore proposed, describe this octivity ond idenlify the type of permits

needed.
3. Describe the meosures f equipmentfsoftwore your business will use to ensure Colifornio Trqck ond Troce System

complionce.
4. Provide q detoiled lisl of ony toxic or flommoble moleriols, pesticides, fertilizers or other moteriqls thoi moy be

used by the business. Also describe how lhese moleriols will be slored to moinloin security or sofety. Attoch ony
opplicoble permits.

5. Provide q detoiled description of how connobis woste will be disposed of including but not limited to orgonic
woste produced by cultivotion qnd hqrvesling octivities, mqnufocturing woste, or woste produced by retoil
estoblishments thol conloin, or hove contoined, connobis ondf or connobis products.

6. List equipmenl thot will be used to meosure or weight connobis products for sole. lf weighmoster lqws opply to
your business, indicole how you will conform to stote lows ond regulotions.

7. Will connobis food products be produced on site? lf so, exploin how this will occur ond with whol equipmenl.
8. Provide o lhree yeor pro-formo stotement.

Notes:

Secfion 5 - Operotions Plon Point Volue Poinrs fusigned

'I . Adequocy of improvemenls ond permit slotus 0-40 28

2. Trock ond Troce complionce system odequocy o-40 40

3. Hozordous mqleriols (EH ond Ag) 0-40 28

4. Storoge sofety ond security (EH ond Ag) 0-40 28

5. Woste disposol plon odequocy (EH ond Ag) o-40 28

6. Adequocy of weights & meosures equipment ond proctices 0-40 38

7. Adequocy of equipment to proposed octivity 0-40 38

|l} Rr" Formo lncluded TOTAL 0-280 228

3



Secrrox 6 - Culrvalox PllN

Applicolion queslions include the following:

Attoch your cuhivolion plon lo this opplicotion qs "Attochment 6". Provide, qt o minimum, informotion lhot will qnswer the

following:

l. Provide o detqiled description of lhe existing lond use ond surrounding lond uses (e.9. residentiol, commerciol,
ogricuhure crop production, vocont lond, rongelond, etc.).

2. Describe how pesl manogement will be conducted including if peslicides will be used qnd if employees will be
using pesticides.

3. Describe how crops will be fertilized ond the products to be used for this process.
4. Describe ony processing fiot will occur on site, including but not limited to, trimming, drying, curing or groding.

Notes:

60l. Surrounding lond use compotibillty 0-60

0.30 182. Pesl monogement plon odequocy

0-30 213. Ferfilizer plon odequocy

0-30 274. Adequocy of processing equipment ond focilities

0-60 505. Ovcrclll plon odequocy

TOTAL 0-210 176

4



SECTIoN Z - CoMMUNITY IMPACT M|TIGATIoN MEASURES

Applicction queslions include the following:

To complete this section oitoch your communily impoct mitigotion plon to rhis opplicotion os "Aftochment 2". Provide, q1-g
minimum, informotion thot will qnswer the following:

l. Describe ony meosures you intend to implement thqt would ovoid impocts to fire qnd low enforcement ogencies
qnd reduce cqllouts from these entities.

2. Exploin whot your business intends to do to minimize other fpes of impocls on surrounding communities.
3. Describe ony orrqngements or qgreemenls reoched with locol ogencies, service districls, nongovernmentol groups,

or olher community reloted groups to minimize impocls to lhe locol community. Attoch copies of ony ogreements.
lf no wriiten qgreement exists, indicote whqt benefits you ore commilling to provide.

Notes:

l. Meosures to ovoid impocts to fire ond low enforcement 0-60 51

2. Meosures lo reduce other impocts lo surrounding communities 0-60 45
3. Agency ogreemenls or slotement of commilmenls business would ogree to 0-60 60

TOTAL 0-r 80 156

5



SecrroN 8 - ENvtnoruutNrnt CoNstornlrtoHs

Applicolion queslions include the following

Attoch on overview covering environmentol considerotions to this opplicotion os "Attochment 8". Provide, ot o minimum,

informotion thot will onswer the following:

I . Provide o detqiled description of where woter will be sourced (e.g. well, sireom diversion, public woler system)

ond ottqch ony opplicotion or permit required by lhe Colifornio Stote Wqter Resources Control Boord,

Groundwoter Sustoinobility Agency, County Environmenlol Heolth Deportment, Community Service District, etc.

Also indicote if recycled woter will be used by the proposed business ond how it will be used.

2. Provide o detoiled description of how ony wostewoter produced will be disposed of, including monufocluring
runoff ond sewoge.

3. Provide o detqiled description of outdoor lighting or other lighting visible to the outside of the business Property
ond whot meosures will be token to minimize impoct on the public. Also describe how these meosures will meel

lnyo County Generol Plon requirements.
4. Provide o detoiled description of ventilolion syslems used to prevent connobis odors or conlrol toxic fumes both

indoor ond outdoor reloted to the business operotions, if ony.
5. Provide o detoiled description ony dust mitigotion thot will be implemented on the business site, if ony.
6. Provide o detoiled description ony noise mitigotion thqt will be implemented on lhe business sile, if ony.

Notes:

Seclion 8 - Envlronmentol Gonsiderolions Point Volue Points Assigned

l. Wqter source stotus ond feosibility (EH) o-60 50

2. Wostewoter monogement odequocy (EH) 0-60 40

3. Outdoor lighting consislency wilh generol plon ond ony dork skies mitigotion 0-60 40

4. Odor control ond ventilotion systems 0-60 45

5. Dust control plon odequocy 0-60 60

6, Noise mitigolion plon odequocy 0-60 30

TOTAL 0-360 265

6



SecrroN 9 - Communry BrNerr PUN

Applicolion queslions include the following:

Attoch your Community Benefit Plon to this opplicotion os "Attochment 9". The Plon must provide, ot o minimum,
informotion thqt will onswer the following:

1. Provide o detoiled description of ony communily benefit plon including but not limited to support of school-reloted
ond community-bosed orgonizotions. Attoch ony documentqtion thqt con be used to substqntiote community
benef it.

2. Describe your strotegies to recruit ond hire locol employees.
3. Provide o complele lisl of iobs onticipoted to be creqted by the proposed business, including number of iobs to be

creoted, wqge to be poid for eqch iob clossificotion. ond o short description of these positions using fte following
toble. Attoch odditionol copies if needed.

Notes:

l. Strength of community benefit plon 0-230 208
2. Locol hiring plon/srrotegies 0-60 50
3. Woge comporison 0-60 60
4. Locol opplicont (bosed on live scqn residence oddress, ownership percentoge) 0-30 15

TOTAL 0-380 333

7



CouNrv or lNvo
CouNry Cornmrncnr ClNNnsrs PERMITTNG Orrrcr
207 WEsr SourH STREFT

BrsHoP, CA 9351 4
760.873.7860

CotvrmencrAr CANNABTS BusrNEss PERMtr AppucATtoN Sconlruo 5rrrr

Seclion I - License Type ond Stotus

fI Complete [-l lncomplete

Notes:

Section 2 - Conloct lnformolion

Ll Complete [-l lncomplete

Notes:

r Complete
Section 3 - Locotion lnformqtion ond Zoning Conformity

lncomplele

Noles:

Revision site plan is acceptable for evaluation. lnitial concerns mitigated, no longer a missing
component.

Sections4-9Scoring

*The weight of eoch section moy be determined by Boord of Supervisors in open session, independent ond withoul
knowledge of the scoring crilerio ossigned to eoch opplicotion.

Applicotion Ver5ion:

! lniriotApplicotion li| Revised Applicotion
Business Nome:

Desert Greens, LLC (Cultivation APN 048-392-12)
Dote Received:

1t3t2020

Seclion
4

Section
5

Seclion
6

Seclion
7

Section
8

Secfion
9 Totol Applicolion Score

Review Ponel
Scorinq 114 228 176 156 265 333 1272

Weight Assigned to
Seclion

Grond Totol Applicolion Score

Score Afler Seclion
Weishtins 114 228 176 156 265 333 1,272



CotvuvlERctAr CANNABTS BusrNEss PERMTT Appr.rcnnoru Sconrruo SHEET (CoNTTNUED)

The following seclions will be scored on merit ond when opplicoble, relotive to other oppliconts for the some license type(s)
in the some zones. Eqch question will hqve q point volue ronge listed, with higher scores ossigned to better responses.

SrcroN 4 - Srcunrrv PLlr.r

Applicolion queslions include the following:

Attoch your securify plon to this opplicofion os "Attochment 4". Provide, ot o minimum, informofion thot will qnswer the

following:

I . Describe ony video surveillonce system(s) thot will be used on site ond specify lhe monufocturer ond model of
eqch. Also include whqt qreos will be under this surveillonce ond lengrh of time thot recordings will be orchived
ond ovoiloble, ond ony other pertinenl informotion.

2. Describe ony olorm systems thot you intend to use including monufoclurer, model, ond service provider if
opplicoble.

3. Describe how cosh on premises will be secured.
4. Describe ony security fencing or other perimeter security methods thot will be used on site including dimensions ond

moieriols used,
5. lf ony security personnel ore lo be used, exploin how personnel ore to be used ond include number of personnel

ond how personnel will be troined/certified. lf security is provided by o controctor, include nome ond conloct
informolion for the compony.

6. Describe focility lighting ond exploin how it will help provide security, toking into occount mointoining consislency
with lnyo County Generol Plon requirements for lighting.

7. Describe ony olher security meosures nol covered by lhe previous sections.

Notes:

2

Seclion 4 - Security Plon Point Volue Points Assigned

l Surveillonce system odequocy (Sheriff) o-25 21

2. Alorm system odequocy (Sheriff) o-25 20

3. Cosh security (Sheriff) o-25 18

4. Perimeter/security fencing odequocy (Sheriff) o-25 6

5. Security personnel use ond troining (Sheriff) o-25 12

6. Security lighting odequocy (Sheriff) o-25 18

7, Additionql security meosures (Sheriff) o-25 19

TOTAL o-175 114



SecrroN 5 - OpenniloNs PrAN

Applicotion queslions include the following:

Attoch your operotions plon lo this opplicotion os "Attochment 5". Provide, ot o minimum, informotion thot will onswer the

following,

l. Description of products ondf or services to be provided.
2. lf ony improvements olher construction ore proposed, describe this octivily ond identify the type of permits

needed.
3. Describe lhe meqsures /equipmentfsoftwore your business will use to ensure Cqliforniq Trock ond Troce System

complionce.
4. Provide o detoiled lisl of ony loxic or f lommoble moteriols, pesticides, fertilizers or olher moteriols thot moy be

used by lhe business. Also describe how lhese moteriqls will be stored to mqintoin securily or sofely. Attoch ony
opplicoble permits.

5. Provide o detqiled description of how connobis woste will be disposed of including but not limited to orgonic
woste produced by cultivotion qnd horvesting octivities, monufocturing woste, or woste produced by retoil
estqblishments ihot conloin, or hove contoined, cqnnobis ondf or cqnnqbis products.

6. Lisl equipment thol will be used to meosure or weight connqbis producls for sole. lf weighmoster lows opply to
your business, indicole how you will conform to stoie lows qnd regulotions.

7. Will connqbis food products be produced on sile? lf so, exploin how this will occur ond wilh whol equipmenl.
8. Provide o three yeor pro-formo stqtement.

Notes:

3

Seclion 5 - Operolions Plon Point Volue Points Assigned

l. Adequocy of improvements ond permit siolus o-40 28

2. Trqck ond Troce complionce system odequocy 0-40 40

3. Hozordous moteriols (EH ond Ag) 0-40 28

4. Storoge sofety ond security (EH ond Ag) o-40 28

5. Wosle disposol plon odequocy (EH ond Ag) 0-40 28

6. Adequocy of weights & meosures equipment ond proctices o-40 38

7. Adequocy of equipmeni lo proposed octivity 0-40 38

f fr" Formo lncluded TOTAL 0-280 228



SecrroN 6 - CulrvlrroN PllN

Applicotion queslions include the following:

Attoch your cultivotion plon to this opplicotion qs "Attqchment 6". Provide, ot o minimum, informotion thot will onswer the

following:

l. Provide o detoiled description of the existing lond use qnd surrounding lqnd uses (e.9. residentiol, commerciol,
ogricuhure crop production, vocont lond, rongelond, etc.).

2. Describe how pest mqnqgement will be conducted including if pesticides will be used qnd if employees will be
using pesticides.

3. Describe how crops will be fertilized ond the products to be used for this process.

4. Describe ony processing lhot will occur on site, including bul not limited to, lrimming, drying, curing or groding.

Notes:

0-60 60l. Surrounding lond use compotlbility

0-30 182, Pest monogemenl plon odequocy

0-30 213. Fertilizer plon odequocy

0-30 274. Adequocy of processing equipmenl ond focilities

0-60 505. Overoll plon odequocy

0-2r 0 176TOTAL

4



secrroN z - CoamnuNnv l,upncr Mrlcltrou Measunes

Applicolion queslions inclsde lhe following:

To complele lhis section oftoch your community impocl mitigotion plon to this opplicotion os "Attochment 2". Provide, ot o
minimum, informolion lhot will onswer the following:

l. Describe qny meosures you intend to implement thot would ovoid impocts to fire ond lqw enforcement ogencies
ond reduce cqllouls from these entities.

2. Exploin whot your business intends to do to minimize other types of impocts on surrounding communities.
3. Describe ony orrongements or ogreements reoched with locol ogencies, service districts, nongovernmentol groups,

or other community reloled groups lo minimize impocts to the locol community. Attoch copies of ony ogreemenls.
lf no written ogreement exisls, indicole whot benefits you ore committing to provide.

Notes:

l. Meosures to ovoid impocts to fire ond low enforcemenf 0-60 51

2. Meosures fo reduce other impocts lo surrounding communities 0-60 45

3. Agency ogreemenls or slqlemeni of commilments business would ogree to 0-60 60

TOTAL 0-r 80 156

5



SrcroN 8 - ENvtnoweNraL CoNsroeBnrroNs

Applicclion queslions include the following:

Attoch on overview covering environmentol considerotions to this opplicotion os "Attochment 8". Provide, ot o minimum.

informotion thot will onswer the following:

l. Provide o detoiled description of where woter will be sourced (e.g. well, streom diversion, public woter system)

ond ottoch ony opplicotion or permil required by the Colifornio Slole Wqter Resources Control Boord,
Groundwoter Sustoinobility Agency, County Environmentol Heolth Deporlment, Community Service Dislrict, etc.
Also indicote if recycled woter will be used by lhe proposed business ond how ii will be used.

2. Provide o detoiled descriplion of how qny woslewoter produced will be disposed of, including monufocturing
runoff qnd sewoge.

3. Provide o detoiled description of outdoor lighting or other lighting visible to lhe outside of the business property
ond whot meosures will be token to minimize impocl on the public. Also describe how these meosures will meel
lnyo Counly Generol Plon requirements.

4. Provide q detoiled descriplion of venlilqlion systems used to prevent cqnnobis odors or conlrol toxic fumes both
indoor ond outdoor reloted to the business operolions, if ony.

5. Provide o deioiled description ony dust mitigotion lhol will be implemenled on the business sile, if ony.
6. Provide o detoiled descripiion ony noise mitigotion thot will be implemented on the business site, if ony.

Notes:

Seclion 8 - Enviionmenlol Considerolions Polnl Volue Poinls Assigned

l. Woter source stotus ond feosibility (EH) 0-60 50

2. Wostewoier monogement odequocy (EH) 0-60 40

3. Outdoor lighting consistency with generol plon ond ony dork skies mitigotion 0-60 40

4. Odor control ond ventilqtion systems 0-60 45

5. Dust control plon odequocy o-60 60

6. Noise miligotion plon odequocy o-60 30

TOTAL 0-360 265

6



SecrroN 9 - ComanuNmy Beuerr PnN

Applicotion queslions include the following:

Attoch your Communily Benefii Plon to this opplicotion qs "Attochment 9". The Plqn must provide, ot o minimum.

informotion thqt will onswer the following:

l Provide q deloiled description of ony communily benefit plon including bul nol limited to support of school-reloted
qnd community-bosed orgonizotions. Attoch ony documentolion thqt con be used to subslqntiqle community
benefit.

2. Describe your strofegies to recruil ond hire locol employees.
3. Provide o complete list of iobs onticipoled to be creoted by lhe proposed business, including number of iobs to be

creoted, woge to be poid for eoch iob clossificotion, ond o short description of these positions using lhe following
toble. Attoch odditionol copies if needed.

Noles:

208l. Strength of community benefit plon 0-230

0-60 502. Locol hiring plon/strotegies

3. Woge comporison 0-60 60

4. Locol opplicont {bosed on live scon residence oddress, ownership percentoge) 0-30 15

TOTAL 0-380 333

7



Couury or lNvo
CouNrv Cor*mencnL CaruNagrs PERMTTTTNG Orrrcr
207 Wtsr Sourn Srnrrr
BrsHoP, CA 9351 4
760.873.7860

CotvtmencrAt CANNABTS BusrNEss PERMTT AppucATroN Sconrnc Snrrr

Applicotion Versionr

! ln:rlol Applicotion [i| Revised Applicotion
Business Nome:

Desert Greens, LLC (Distribution APN 048-391-07)
Dote Received:

1t6t2020

Section I - License Type ond Stotus

[r| Complete fl lncomplete

Notes:

New Section 1 submitted. New information consistent with earlier pers. comm. that indicated this
proposal was for a distribution{ype license and not a microbusiness.

Section 2 - Contoct lnformolion

El Complete f-l lncomplete

Notes:

Jl| Complete
Seclion 3 - Locotion lnformqtion qnd Zoning Conformity

lncomplete

Noles:

Acceptable site plan included with revision materials

Seciions4-9Scorinq

*The weight of eqch section moy be determined by Boord of Supervisors in open session, independenl ond without
knowledge of the scoring criteriq ossigned to eoch opplicotion.

Secfion
4

Seclion
5

Secfion
6

Seclion
7

Secfion
8

Seclion
9

Totol Applicolion Score

Review Ponel
Scoring 114 228 N/A 156 265 333 1 096

Weight Assigned lo
Seclion

Grond Torol Applicolion Score

Score After Seclion
Weighting 114 228 N/A 156 265 333 1,096



CoMMERcTAT CANNABTS BusrNEss PERMTT Appr.rcliloH ScoRrNG SHEET (CoNTTNUED)

The following seclions will be scored on merit ond when opplicoble, relotive to other oppliconts for lhe some license type(s)

in the some zones. Eoch question will hove o point volue ronge listed, with higher scores ossigned to better responses.

SecrroN 4 - Secuntrv PLaru

Applicolion queslions include the following:

Attoch your security plon to this opplicotion os "Attochment 4". Provide, ot o minimum, informotion thot will onswer ihe

following:

l. Describe ony video surveillonce syslem(s) thot will be used on site ond specify lhe monufoclurer ond model of
eoch. Also include whot oreqs will be under this surveillonce ond length of time thqt recordings will be orchived
ond ovoiloble, ond ony oiher pertinent informqtion.

2. Describe ony olorm systems thot you intend to use including monufocturer, model, ond service provider if
opplicoble.

3. Describe how cosh on premises will be secured.
4. Describe ony security fencing or olher perimeler security methods thot will be used on sile including dimensions ond

mqleriols used.
5. lf ony security personnel ore to be used, exploin how personnel ore to be used ond include number of personnel

ond how personnel will be troined/certified. lf securiiy is provided by o conlroctor, include nome ond contoct
informotion for the compony.

6. Describe focility lighting ond exploin how it will help provide security, toking into occouni moinloining consistency
wiih lnyo Counly Generql Plon requirements for lighting.

7, Describe ony olher security meosures not covered by rhe previous sections.

Noies:

2

Seclion 4 - Security Plon Poinl Volue Points Assigned

l. Surveillonce syslem odequocy (Sheriff) o-25 21

2. Alorm system odequocy (Sheriff) o-25 20

3. Cosh securily (Sheriff) o-25 18

4. Perimefer/security fencing odequocy (Sheriff) o-25 6

5. Security personnel use ond troining (Sheriff) o-2s 12

6. Security lighting odequocy (Sheriff) o-25 1B

7. Additionol securily meosures (Sheriff) o-25 19

TOTAL o-175 114



SecrroN 5 - Oprnlrrors Pnr

Applicotion queslions include the following:

Attoch your operotions plon to this opplicotion os "Attochment 5". Provide, ot o minimum, informotion thot will onswer the

following:

l. Description of products ondf or services to be provided.
2. lf ony improvements other conslruclion ore proposed, describe this octivily ond identify the type of permits

needed.
3. Describe the meosures f equipmentfsoflwore your business will use lo ensure Colifornio Trock ond Troce System

complionce.
4. Provide q deloiled lisl of ony toxic or flommoble moteriols, pesticides, fertilizers or other moteriols lhot moy be

used by the business. Also describe how lhese moteriols will be stored to mointoin security or sofety. Attoch ony
opplicoble permils.

5. Provide q detoiled description of how connobis woste will be disposed of including but not limited to orgonic
woste produced by cultivotion ond horvesting octivilies, monufocturing woste, or wosie produced by retoil
estoblishments thot contoin, or hove contoined, connobis ondf or connobis products.

6. List equipmenl thot will be used lo meosure or weighl connobis products for sole. lf weighmosler lows opply to
your business, indicote how you will conform lo stote lows ond regulotions.

7. Will connobis food products be produced on site? lf so, exploin how this will occur ond with whot equipment.
8. Provide o three yeor pro-formo stqtement.

Noles:

3

Seclion 5 - Operolions Plon Point Volue Points fusigned

l. Adequocy of improvements ond permit stotus o-40 28

2. Trock ond Troce complionce syslem odequocy 0-40 40

3. Hozordous mqleriols (EH ond Ag) o-40 28

4. Storoge sofety ond security (EH ond Ag) 0-40 28

5. Woste disposol plon odequocy (EH ond Ag) 0-40 28

6. Adequocy of weights & meosures equipment ond proctices 0-40 38

7. Adequocy of equipment to proposed octivity 0-40 38

f Rr" Formo lncluded TOTAL 0-280 228



SrcroH 6 - CurrrvlrroN PlnN

Applicolion queslions include lhe following

Attoch your cultivotion plon to ftis opplicotion os "Attochment 6". Provide, ot o minimum. informotion thot will onswer the

following:

l. Provide q delqiled description of lhe existing lond use ond surrounding lond uses (e.9. residentiol, commerciol,
ogriculture crop production, vocont lond, rongelond, etc.).

2. Describe how pest mqnogement will be conducted including if peslicides will be used ond if employees will be
using pesticides.

3. Describe how crops will be fertilized ond the products to be used for this process.
4. Describe ony processing lhot will occur on site, including but not limited lo, lrimming, drying, curing or groding.

Noies:

0-60l. Surrounding lond use compotibility

2. Pest monogemenl plon odequocy o-30

3. Feriilizer plon odequocy 0-30

4. Adequccy of processing equipmenl ond focilities o-30

5. Overoll plon odequocy 0-60

TOTAL 0-2r 0 0

4



secroN 7 - CommuNrry l,r,rplcr MrtclrtoN Mrnsunes

Applicolion queslions include the following:

To complete this section ottoch your community impoct mitigotion plon to this opplicotion os "Aitochment 7". Provide, ot o
minimum, informotion rhoi will onsv/er the following:

l. Describe qny meosures you inlend to implement thqt would ovoid impocts to fire ond low enforcement ogencies
qnd reduce cqllouts from these entilies.

2. Exploin whot your business intends to do to minimize other types of impocts on surrounding communities.

3. Describe ony qrrongemenls or ogreements reoched with locol ogenciesr service districts, nongovernmeniol groups,
or other communily reloled groups to minimize impocts to the locol community. Attoch copies of ony ogreements.
lf no writien ogreemenl exists, indicote whol benefits you ore commitling to provide.

Noles:

l. Meosures to ovoid impocts to fire ond low enforcemenl 0-60 51

2. Meosures to reduce other impocts lo surrounding communities 0-60 45

3. Agency ogreemenis or siotement of commilmenls business would ogree lo 0-60 60

TOTAL 0-r 80 156

5



SrcrroN 8 - ENvtnoNmrNrnt CorusrornnrroNs

Applicolion queslions include the following:

Attoch on overview covering environmentol considerotions to this opplicotion os "Attochment 8". Provide, ot o minimum,

informotion thot will onswer the following:

1. Provide o detoiled description of where wqter will be sourced (e.g. well, streom diversion, public woler syslem)
ond ottoch ony opplicotion or permit required by the Colifornio Stote Woter Resources Control Boord,
Groundwoter Susloinobility Agency, County Environmentol Heolth Deportmeni, Community Service Dislrict, etc.
Also indicqte if recycled woler will be used by the proposed business ond how it will be used.

2. Provide o detoiled descriplion of how ony wostewoter produced will be disposed of, including monufocluring
runoff ond sewqge.

3. Provide o detoiled description of outdoor lighting or other lighting visible lo the outside of the business property
ond whot meosures will be tqken to minimize impoct on the public. Also describe how these meosures will meet
lnyo County Generol Plon requirements.

4. Provide o detoiled descriplion of ventilotion systems used to prevent connobis odors or control toxic fumes both
indoor ond ouldoor reloled to the business operotions, if ony.

5. Provide o deioiled description ony dust mitigotion thot will be implemenled on lhe business sile, if ony.
6. Provide o detoiled description ony noise mitigotion thot will be implemented on the business sile, if ony.

Notes:

Seclion 8 - Environmentol Considerotions Polnl Volue Polnts Assigned

l. Woter source stotus ond feosibility (EH) 0-60 50

2, Wqstewoler monqgement odequocy (EH) 0-60 40

3. Outdoor lighting consislency with generol plon ond ony dork skies mitigotion 0-60 40

4. Odor control ond ventilotion systems 0-60 45

5. Dust control plon odequocy 0-60 60

6. Noise mitigotion plon odequocy 0-60 30

TOTAL o-360 265

6



SecrtoN 9 - CommuNrry BeNerr PlnN

Applicolion queslions include the following:

Attoch your Community Benefit Plon to this opplicotion os "Attochment 9". The Plon must provide, ot o minimum,

informotion thot will qnswer the following:

1 Provide q detoiled description of ony community benefit plon including but not limited to support of school-reloted
ond community-bosed orgonizolions. Attoch ony documentolion thqt con be used to substqntiote community
benef it.

2. Describe your strqlegies lo recruit ond hire locol employees.
3. Provide o complele list of iobs onticipoled to be creoted by the proposed business, including number of iobs to be

creoled, woge to be poid for eqch job clossificolion, ond o short description of these positions using lhe following
toble. Attqch qdditionol copies if needed.

Notes:

l. Strength of community benefit plon 0-230 208
2. Locol hiring plon/strolegies 0-60 50

3. Woge comporison 0-60 60
4. Locol opplicont (bosed on live scon residence oddress, ownership percentoge) 0-30 15

TOTAL 0-380 333

7



 

 

 

*Red denotes available licenses remaining if all recommended licenses are issues by the board on 2/11/20  

Zone Major Communities Cultivation 
<5,000f sq. ft. 

Cultivation >5,000 
sq. ft. 

Manufacturing 
Level 1 

Manufacturing 
Level 2 Testing Retail 

Non-storefront 
Retail Distributor Microbusiness 

1 
Round Valley, 

Mustang Mesa, Dixon 
Lane, Meadowcreek 

2 1 0 1 0 1 1 1 

2 Laws 2 2  0 0 1 1 1 

3 West Bishop No Licenses Authorized in Zone 3 

4 
Wilkerson,  
Big Pine, 

Independence 
2 1 0 0 0 1 1 1 

5A Lone Pine, Alabama 
Hills 2 1 0 1 1 (0)* 1 1 1 

5B Olancha, Cartago No Licenses Authorized in Zone 5B 

5C 
W. Sage Flat Road, 

Coso Junction, 
Pearsonville 

0 1 0 1 1 2 1 2 

5D Keeler, Darwin 2 1 0 0 0 1 1 1 

5E Trona Area, 
Homewood Canyon 5 2 1 1 1 1 2 1 (0)* 

5F Tecopa 9 4 1 1 1 2 2 

5G 
Stewart Valley, 
Charleston View, 

Sandy Valley 
2 6 (4)* 4 1 0 0 2 (1)* 5 

License Type All Cultivation All Manufacturing Testing Retailer Non-storefront 
Retail Distributor Microbusiness 

Total Number 32 (30)* 18 7 4 (3)* 9 12 (11)* 15 (14)* 

COUNTY OF INYO 
 

COUNTY COMMERCIAL CANNABIS PERMITTING OFFICE 
 

207 WEST SOUTH STREET 
BISHOP, CA 93514 
760.873.7860 
 
 



County of Inyo

Planning Department
 

TIMED ITEMS - ACTION REQUIRED
 
MEETING:  February 11, 2020 

FROM:   
 
SUBJECT:  Updates to the County's Short-term Rental of Residential Property Ordinance 
 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:
Request Board: A) conduct a public hearing on a proposed ordinance titled, "An Ordinance of the Board of 
Supervisors of the County of Inyo, State of California, Amending Inyo County Code Sections 18.73.010, 
18.73.020, 18.73.030; 18.73.060, and 18.73.080; Amending Inyo County Code Subsections 18.73.040.A.9, 
18.73.040.A.10, 18.73.070.A, and 18.73.070.B; and Adding Subsection 18.73.070.C to the Inyo County Code;" 
B) certify that it is exempt from CEQA; and C) waive further reading of and enact said ordinance.

 
SUMMARY/JUSTIFICATION:
Based on direction from the Board of Supervisors, staff is recommending updates to the County’s Short-term 
Rental of Residentially Zoned Property ordinance to add stricter penalties for violations, allow for them in the R2 
zone, new permitting requirements, and to eliminate the Non-hosted Short-term Rental Permit.

BACKGROUND/HISTORY OF BOARD ACTIONS: 
The Inyo County Board of Supervisors adopted ordinance 1224 in February, 2018.  This ordinance created code 
to allow for and regulate the Short-term Rental of Residentially Zoned property. It also set forth the terms and 
conditions for permitting them.  

After one year of implementing the short-term rental ordinance, planning department staff reviewed and 
evaluated the success and issues of the permitting process. Three workshops were held with the Board of 
Supervisors in May, October and December of 2019 to discuss the status of the short-term rental permitting 
experiences to date. At the October workshop, staff also presented proposals to amend Title 18 in order to 
update the short-term rental permitting process and to add penalties for short-term rentals operating in violation 
of the County Code. The Board accepted most of these suggestions and requested that staff also remove the 
non-hosted short-term rental permit as an option, resulting in only hosted-short term rentals to be allowed. The 
Board also requested that staff include language to allow for short-term rentals in the Multiple Family Zone (2-
units, R2). These additional changes were brought back to the Board at the December workshop and the Board 
gave staff direction to move forward with an update to Title 18 with regard to short-term rentals (Attachment 1 – 
Updated Code)(Attachment 2 Draft Ordinance).

In summary, the changes include: 
• The term host and manager are no longer used for the person(s) responsible for a short-term rental. Instead 



Agenda Request 
Page 2

“Designated representative” will be used to identify a person or persons designated by the owner to represent 
them as a ‘host’ during the duration of the transient renter(s) stay. 
• An owner is no longer someone with twenty-percent or more of ownership interest in the property. As proposed, 
any level of ownership counts someone as an owner. This was done to help prevent certain people or entities 
from having more than one property with a short-term rental(s).
• Multiple Residential (R2) is added to the zoning designations where short-term rentals are allowed. They are 
only allowed in one of the units in an R2 zone.
• All short-term rentals are "hosted" as that word is newly defined. There will be no more non-hosted short-term 
rental permits granted. This is being done as a policy decision by the Board who believe that the commercial 
nature of short-term rentals is not an appropriate activity in residential neighborhoods. The Board is also 
concerned about the lack of affordable housing in the County and how short-term rentals may exacerbate the 
issue.
• There can be two short-term rentals on one property, except in the R2 zone, and a designated representative 
must be on the property at all times during a short-term rental.
• Only one property per owner can have a short-term rental. This is changing from two to reduce the number of 
parcels any one person or entity can operate a short-term rental on.
• Language is being added to make it perfectly clear that operating a short-term rental in the County without a 
permit is a violation of the County code and a penalty of no less than the dollar amount of the nightly rental rate 
of the property for each day the short-term rental is operated in violation of 18.73, or as permitted by Section 
1.20.010 of the Code, whichever is more, to the maximum extent allowed by law, is also being added to all 
violations of the short-term rental code. This is being proposed to help detour people from operating short-term 
rentals in violation of the code.
• A requirement is suggested for an address sign, visible from the street, to be included on each dwelling unit 
where short-term rentals are permitted. This should eliminate the potential nuisance from renters who cannot find 
their rental units.
• With regard to application requirements, the term agreement on the form taken to neighbors as part of a short-
term rental permitting process is being changed to acknowledgement and a requirement to share the house rules 
with neighbors is being added. This change should help to relax some of the apprehension from the neighbors 
being asked to sign it. Applicants are then less likely to try to force an agreement from their neighbors and the 
neighbors do not feel pressured agree to something they either do not like or understand. Adding the requirement 
to share the rental rules should also help the neighbors to understand that the rentals are regulated and to 
provide ideas for additional rules that may be appropriate based on the specific characteristics of the 
neighborhood.
• A requirement to add mailed notices to property owners within 300-feet of a proposed short-term rental is 
recommended. This will help ensure that people who cannot be reached by a visit from the proponent will be 
notified about a proposed short-term rental in the vicinity of their home by mail.
• Each short-term rental permit will be reviewed annually. This review shall include any complaints that may have 
been submitted on a short-term rental and site visits if deemed necessary to fully evaluate the complaints. If more 
than three substantiated complaints have been submitted on a particular short-term rental, the short-term rental 
permit will be considered in violation. This should result in eliminating short-term rentals with poor histories of 
continuing nuisances and it provides a specific limitation on the number of violations a single short-term rental 
can have before the permit is revoked. This should result in eliminating short-term rentals with poor histories of 
continuing nuisances.

The previously suggested language prohibiting short-term rentals in accessory dwelling units (ADUs) built after 
January 1, 2020 is not being included in today’s recommendation.  That prohibition was included as a 
recommendation during our workshop in December based on California HCD staff’s explanation of what changes 
to Government Code section 65852.2 included, without us then having the benefit of the amendments to statute 
being published in their final form for our review.  At the Planning Commission hearing there were numerous 
comments regarding the effect such a prohibition would have on property owners existing and future investments 
in their property.  Staff looked more closely at this issue based on those comments, and discovered that the 
actual language of Government Code 65852.2  does not include a blanket prohibition of short term rentals in 
newly constructed ADUs, but rather only on those for which a property owner chooses to build an ADU pursuant 
to Government Code section 65852.2(e), which essentially requires the ministerial issuance of a building permit 



Agenda Request 
Page 3

for ADUs that meet certain maximum design criteria. Should an owner build an ADU pursuant to Government 
Code section 65852.2(a) (based upon a County ADU ordinance) or, in our current case section 65852.2(b) (when 
there is a lack of an ADU ordinance), the County may, but is not required to, prohibit short term rentals. 

As noted above, staff does not recommend including the prohibition on short term rentals for all new ADUs 
because that appears to run contrary to the policy direction given by the Board, which is to allow property owners 
to gain income from the use of their property, properly balanced against the need for long term housing.  We 
understand the Board intends to achieve that balance by requiring the concurrent occupation of the property 
during all short term rentals.  Additionally, a blanket prohibition of short term rentals in all new ADUs would likely 
stifle the creation of dwelling units within the County that might otherwise be created in a regulatory environment 
where owners have a potentially highly efficient income source to recoup their investment, and those units might 
become available for long term housing at some point thereafter.   

FINDINGS:

California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA)
Zone Text Amendment No. 2020-01/Inyo County – Short-term Rentals, is Exempt from CEQA by “Categorical 
Exemption, Class 1 Existing Facilities” found in 14 CCR section 15301 that applies to the operation, repair, 
maintenance, permitting, leasing, licensing, or minor alteration of existing public or private structures, facilities, 
mechanical equipment, or topographical features, involving negligible or no expansion of use beyond that 
existing at the time of the lead agency’s determination. .  .  . The Zone Text Amendment proposes to change 
certain permitting requirements and disallows non-hosted short term rentals of residential property to an already 
allowed use in specific zoning districts of the County; these changes will cause a reduction of potential impacts to 
residential neighborhoods; and therefore, the activity is exempt from CEQA.

General Plan Consistency
The approval of ZTA 2020-01 results in updates to penalties for violations, permitting requirements and changes 
to allow activities related to the short-term rental of residential properties, which does not cause new use types to 
what is already allowed based on General Plan designations and use permits will continue to be required for all 
short-term rental of residential property activities.

Zoning Ordinance Consistency
ZTA 2020-01 is consistent with the Inyo County Zoning code as it will result updates to penalties for violations, 
specific permitting requirements and certain allowed activities related to short-term rental of residential 
properties. It will not cause new use types to what is already established in the Inyo County Zoning Code and use 
permits will continue to be required for all for all short-term rental of residential property activities..

RECOMMENDATION:

Planning Commission Resolution
The Planning Commission reviewed the proposed Ordinance at its regularly scheduled January 22nd, 2020 
meeting and voted unanimously to adopt a resolution (attachment 3) recommending the Board of Supervisors 
Enact the Ordinance and certify that it is exempt from CEQA. In addition to the change to the ADU restriction 
language, A few technical revisions to the proposed ordinance before your Board today were made from that 
provided to the Planning Commission. 

No substantive issues were raised at the Planning Commission hearing; however, a couple of Planning 
Commissioners expressed some concerns about eliminating the non-hosted short-term rental permit in terms of 
economic opportunity for Inyo County citizens and this highly sought out accommodation type by tourists. Staff is 
recommending the Board approve the updates to the Short-term Rental Ordinance with the one change 
(removing the ADU restriction) from the version upon which the Planning Commission based their 
recommendation.
 



Agenda Request 
Page 4

ALTERNATIVES AND CONSEQUENCES OF NEGATIVE ACTION:

 
OTHER AGENCY INVOLVEMENT:

 
FINANCING:

 
ATTACHMENTS:
1. Chapter 18.73 w/ Redline Changes
2. Proposed Ordinance to Amend Title 18
3. Planning Commission Resolution No. 2020-01
 
APPROVALS:
Cathreen Richards Created/Initiated - 1/27/2020
Darcy Ellis Approved - 1/28/2020
Marshall Rudolph Approved - 1/28/2020
Cathreen Richards Final Approval - 1/29/2020



Attachment 1 – Proposed Changes February 11, 2020 

 

 

Chapter 18.73 SHORT-TERM RENTAL OF RESIDENTIAL PROPERTY 

18.73.010 Definitions. 

    For purposes of this chapter, the following definitions apply: 

   “Designated representative” means a person or persons designated by the owner to represent them as a 
‘host’ during the duration of the transient renter(s) stay.  

    “Guestroom” means any bedroom or other separate area of a dwelling unit utilized as a sleeping area 
for short-term renters. 

    “Hosted rental” means a short-term rental of a room(s) within a dwelling that is occupied where the 
owner or a designated representative of   the owner resides on the parcel where the rental occurs, during 
the duration of the transient renter(s) stay. 

    “Manager” means the owner or owner’s agent who provides oversight for non-hosted short-term rental 
activities and is available twenty-four hours per day, seven days per week, during all times that the 
property is rented as a non-hosted short-term rental to respond to and handle complaints. 

    “Non-hosted rental” means a short-term rental of an entire dwelling unit where the owner of the 
dwelling unit does not concurrently occupy the dwelling unit with the transient lodger. 

    “Owner” shall mean a record owner of the property who is responsible for submitting the application 
for approval and conducting hosted and non-hosted short-term rental activities pursuant to this chapter. 
“Owner” shall further include any person or entity with any direct or indirect aggregate ownership interest 
of twenty percent or more  in the subject property, unless the interest is solely a security, lien, or 
encumbrance. 

    “Short-term rental” means to provide transient lodging in a dwelling unit, for compensation, for a 
period of thirty consecutive calendar days or less. “Short-term rental” does not include transient lodging 
in county-approved hotels and motels.  

  

18.73.020 Short-term rentals prohibited. 

    The short-term rental of residential property is a prohibited use in every zoning district in the county, 
with the exception of those permitted pursuant to this chapter. A violation of this Chapter is a 
Misdemeanor.  

 

18.73.030 Short-term rentals—General requirements. 

    Short-term rentals may be permitted on properties zoned open space (OS); rural residential (RR); rural 
residential Starlite; one-family residential (R1); and single residence mobile home combined (RMH), and 
Multiple Residential (R2) subject to the following requirements and limitations: 

A. No person shall undertake, maintain, authorize, aide, facilitate, or advertise any short-term rental 
activity that does not comply with the provisions of this code. 

B. All short-term rentals shall be hosted rentals. 
 

A.C. Each short-term rental shall have a host or manager designated representative readily available to 
handle any questions or complaints during all short-term rental activities. Any change to the 
contact information for the owner or owner’s designated representative manager of a non-hosted 



Attachment 1 – Proposed Changes February 11, 2020 

 

 

short-term rental shall immediately be provided in writing to the Inyo County planning department, 
to neighboring properties within three hundred feet of the short-term vacation rental, and on any 
postings required by this chapter. 

B.D. Only one two hosted rentals per parcel may be permitted, except in the R2 zone, where only one 
hosted rental per parcel may be permitted, and any such short term rental in an R2 zone shall only 
be permitted in a dwelling unit that is concurrently occupied by a primary resident(s). 

    D.   Only one non-hosted rental per parcel may be permitted, provided that the owner also possesses a 
permit for a hosted rental. 

    E.    No more than two parcels on which short-term rentals are permitted may share a common owner.   

 An Owner shall only be eligible to maintain a permit(s) for short-term rentals on a maximum of 
 one parcel of land. 

    F.    No more than five guestrooms per dwelling unit may be permitted for short-term rental activity. 

    G.   Issuance of a hosted and/or non-hosted short-term rental permit, pursuant to this chapter, is 
separately required for each dwelling unit in which a short-term rental will occur.  Failure to obtain a 
hosted short-term rental permit prior to renting a residentially zoned property for 30-days or less shall be 
considered a violation of Chapter 18.73 and subject to legal action and/or enforcement proceedings 
including but not limited to an administrative penalty of no less than the dollar amount of the nightly 
rental rate of the property for each day the short-term rental is advertised and/or operated in violation of 
18.73, or as permitted by Section 1.20.010 of this Code, whichever is more, to the maximum extent 
allowed by the law. 

    H.   Short-term rentals shall not be permitted in dwelling units that are not compliant with applicable 
building and safety and/or environmental health requirements, or in non-habitable structures, tents, travel 
trailers, RVs, treehouses, yurts, or other provisions or structures not intended for primary occupancy. 

    I.     Only two renters are allowed per guestroom. This number does not include children three years 
and under. 

    J.    A maximum of one vehicle per guestroom shall be allowed, and the owner shall provide off-street 
parking for all such allowed vehicles, that the renter(s) shall utilize. The owner shall ensure that the 
parking limitations are included in short-term rental agreements and in all related advertisements. 

    K.   Outdoor amplified sound is prohibited. 

    L.    Quiet hours shall be from nine p.m. to seven a.m. The host shall ensure that the quiet hours are 
included in rental agreements and in all advertisements. 

    M.   Pets, if allowed by owner, shall be secured on the property at all times. Continual barking or other 
nuisances created by unattended pets are prohibited. 

    N.   Trash bins and recycling storage containers shall be required for all permitted short-term rentals 
and such bins and containers shall not be stored within public view. 

    O.   Outdoor fire areas are only permitted in compliance with applicable state and local laws and shall 
not be utilized by short-term renters during quiet hours. 

    P.    Short-term rental activity is subject to, and the owner shall comply with, Inyo County Code 
Chapter 3.20 Transient Occupancy Tax. The owner shall include the transient occupancy tax registration 
certificate number on all short-term rental agreements, and in any related advertisements. (Ord. 1224 § 1, 
2018.) 



Attachment 1 – Proposed Changes February 11, 2020 

 

 

  Q. An address sign compliant with the County’s sign ordinance 18.75 with a clearly legible, from the 
street, address number shall be included on each short-term rental.   

 

18.73.040 Permit application. 

    In order to obtain a permit authorizing short-term rentals under this chapter, the owner shall submit an 
application and any applicable fee for a permit to the planning director. 

    A.   The application shall include: 

    1.    Proof of ownership of the subject property; 

    2.    Name, address, and contact information of the owner; 

    3.    Name, address, and contact information of all other record owners of the subject property; 

    4.    Name, address and contact information for the owner’s local emergency contact representative in 
the event the owner is the manager and is unable to be contacted; 

    5.    A site plan prepared on an eight and one-half-inch by eleven-inch piece of paper showing that the 
required off-street parking spaces are provided, and the emergency access to the dwelling unit(s); 

    6.    Proof that transient occupancy registration certificate for the subject property has been applied for 
and/or received; 

    7.    A copy of the rules, regulations, and information that will be posted in a prominent place within 
six feet of the front door of the short-term rental; 

    8.    A verified list of the names and addresses of the owners of all property within three hundred feet of 
the exterior boundaries of the property proposed for the short-term rental as shown on the last adopted tax 
role of the county; 

    9.    A deposit for the cost of the county mailing notice of permits  applications received and granted to 
property owners and neighbors of  proposed and approved short-term rentals within three hundred feet of 
the subject property; 

    10.  For hosted rentals only: 

    a.    A planning department issued neighborhood agreement  acknowledgement form signed by each 
resident within three hundred feet of the proposed hosted rental. If the applicant is unable to obtain the 
required signatures, the applicant shall provide proof of his or her reasonable attempts to gather those 
signatures. The applicant shall also include and share a copy of the short-term rental rules with each 
resident contacted. 

    B.   Incomplete applications shall be returned to the applicant with an explanation of what is required to 
make the application complete. 

  

18.73.050 Hosted rental permit review process. 

    A.   The planning director shall review completed applications for hosted short-term rentals. The 
planning director shall not approve the application absent a finding that the use will comply with the 
requirements of this code and other applicable law. Approval of an application for a hosted rental shall be 
subject to the general requirements of Chapter 18.81 of this code. 



Attachment 1 – Proposed Changes February 11, 2020 

 

 

    B.   As part of the hosted rental application review, the planning director shall consider any relevant 
comments received from neighboring residents and/or owners regarding the application. The planning 
director may add reasonable conditions to a hosted rental permit in order to prevent impacts of the short-
term rental activities from being a nuisance to the surrounding properties, including, but not limited to, 
conditions related to specific parking requirements, noise reduction measures, garbage collection, and 
related property maintenance issues. 

    C.   The decision of the planning director may be appealed to the planning commission pursuant to 
Chapter 18.81 of this code. The planning commission shall review the application in the manner set forth 
for vacation rental applications in Section 18.73.040. (Ord. 1224 § 1, 2018.) 

  

18.73.060 [RESERVED] Non-hosted short-term rental permit review process. 

    A.   Upon receipt of a complete application for a non-hosted short-term rental, the planning director 
shall cause the application to be placed on a planning commission agenda for the review of the 
application as generally required by Chapter 18.81 of this code. The planning director may provide a 
recommended action and/or any other relevant information to the planning commission as part of the 
agenda item. Approval of an application for a non-hosted short-term rental shall be subject to the general 
requirements of Chapter 18.81 of this code. 

    B.   The decision of the planning commission may be appealed to the board of supervisors consistent 
with Chapter 18.81 of this code. (Ord. 1224 § 1, 2018.) 

  

18.73.070 Permit modification and revocation. 

    A.  Every short-term rental permit will be reviewed annually by the Planning Director. This review 
shall include any complaints that may have been submitted on the short-term rental and site visits if 
deemed necessary to fully evaluate complaints and to initiate a modification proceeding as deemed 
appropriate given all of the facts and circumstances of a given parcel on which short term rental activity is 
permitted. 

     B.  The planning director may revoke or modify a short-term rental permit as follows: 

    1.    Notice and Hearing. Notice shall be mailed to the owner at the address specified in the approval 
application. The notice shall specify the reason(s) for the modification or revocation and shall designate a 
time and place of an administrative hearing with the planning director no sooner than six and no later than 
thirty weekdays, excluding holidays, following the mailing date of the notice. 

    The owner shall be provided the opportunity to present written and oral evidence at the hearing. Failure 
to appear at the hearing shall constitute a waiver of any objections to the proposed modification or 
revocation. 

    a.    Following the hearing, the planning director may revoke or modify the approval upon making one 
or more of the following findings: 

i. The approval was obtained by fraud; 
ii. The short-term rental activity has been or is being conducted in violation of this chapter or 

other applicable law; 
iii. The conditions of approval have been or are being violated; 
iv. The short-term rental activity constitutes a public nuisance. 



Attachment 1 – Proposed Changes February 11, 2020 

 

 

v. The parcel on which the short term rental violation has occurred has three or more violations in 
a year, which shall be an automatic revocation. 

vi. “Ownership of more than one parcel on which short-term rentals are permitted shall in itself be 
an automatic revocation of all of the owner’s short-term permits, except for the permit(s) 
originally granted.”       
 

 2.    Notice of Decision. A written notice of the planning director’s decision shall be prepared and 
mailed to the owner at the address specified in the application for approval, or as may have otherwise 
been formally changed by the owner. The notice shall contain a statement directing the owner to 
immediately cease using the property for short-term rentals, and that failure to cease such use may be 
subject to further legal action and/or enforcement proceedings. including but not limited to an 
administrative penalty of no less than the dollar amount of the nightly rental rate of the property for each 
day the short-term rental is advertised and/or operated in violation of 18.73, or as permitted by Section 
1.20.010 of this Code, whichever is more, to the maximum extent allowed by law.  

   C.   Appeal. The decision of the planning director to modify or revoke a short-term rental application 
may be appealed to the board of supervisorsplanning commission consistent with Chapter 18.81 of this 
code. 

  

18.73.080 Enforcement. 

    A.   Initial Complaints. Initial complaints regarding short-term rental activity on a parcel permitted 
pursuant to this chapter will generally be directed to the owner or manager owner’s designated 
representative identified in the short-term rental permit. The owner for hosted or, designated 
representative the manager for nonhosted  of short-term rentals shall be responsible for contacting the 
tenant to correct the problem within ninety minutes, or within forty-five minutes if during quiet hours, 
including visiting the site if necessary, to ensure that the issue has been corrected. The owner or owner’s 
designated representativefor hosted, or the manager for non-hosted short-term rentals, shall report any 
such complaints, and their resolutions or attempted resolutions, to the Inyo County planning department 
within twenty-four hours of the occurrence. Failure to respond to complaints or report them to the 
planning department within twenty-four hours of the occurrence shall be considered a violation of this 
section, and may constitute cause for revocation or modification of the short-term rental permit. 
Occupants of surrounding properties shall be apprised of this complaint procedure. 

    B.   The county may enforce the provisions of this chapter in accordance with Chapter 18.22 Title 22 of 
this code. 

 



 

ORDINANCE XXXX 
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS OF THE COUNTY OF INYO, 
STATE OF CALIFORNIA, AMENDING INYO COUNTY CODE SECTIONS 18.73.010, 
18.73.020, 18.73.030; 18.73.060, AND 18.73.080; AMENDING INYO COUNTY CODE 
SUBSECTIONS 18.73.040.A.9, 18.73.040.A.10, 18.73.070.A, AND 18.73.070.B; AND 

ADDING SUBSECTION 18.73.070.C TO THE INYO COUNTY CODE. 
 
WHEREAS, the Inyo County Board of Supervisors adopted Ordinance 1224 allowing for the 
short-term rental (30-days or less) of residentially zoned property; and 
 
WHEREAS, after a year of implementing the short-term rental of residential property 
ordinance planning department staff reviewed short-term rental activities and presented them to 
the Inyo County Board of Supervisors at three separate workshops where they were discussed; 
and 
 
WHEREAS, planning staff proposed various changes to the short-term rental of residential 
properties ordinance regarding stricter penalties for violations, changes to permitting 
requirements and definitions; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Inyo County Board of Supervisors, as a policy decision, requested that 
planning department staff add the Multiple Residential, 2-units (R2) zone to the zoning 
districts that allow for short-term rentals and to remove the non-hosted permit, effectively 
disallowing the use in the future and to keep certain changes proposed by planning staff; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Inyo County Planning Commission met to discuss the proposed changes to 
the ordinance with regard to consistency with Inyo County zoning code, General Plan and the 
California Environmental Quality Act and concurred with county staff recommendations.  
  
NOW, THEREFORE, the Board of Supervisors, County of Inyo, ordains as follows: 
 
SECTION I.  Section 18.73.010 of the Inyo County Code is amended in its entirety to 
read as follows:  
“18.73.010 Definitions. 
 
For purposes of this chapter, the following definitions apply: 

 
“Designated representative” means a person or persons designated by the owner to represent 
them as a ‘host’ during the duration of the transient renter(s) stay. 
 
“Guestroom” means any bedroom or other separate area of a dwelling unit utilized as a 
sleeping area for short-term renters. 
 
“Hosted rental” means a short-term rental of a room(s) within a dwelling where the owner or a 
designated representative of the owner resides on the parcel where the rental occurs, during the 
duration of the transient renter(s) stay. 



 

 2

 
“Owner” shall mean a record owner of the property who is responsible for submitting the 
application for approval and conducting hosted short-term rental activities pursuant to this 
chapter. “Owner” shall further include any person or entity with any direct or indirect 
ownership interest in the subject property, unless the interest is solely a security, lien, or 
encumbrance. 
 
“Short-term rental” means to provide transient lodging in a dwelling unit, for compensation, 
for a period of thirty consecutive calendar days or less. “Short-term rental” does not include 
transient lodging in county-approved hotels and motels.” 
 
SECTION II.  Section 18.73.020 of the Inyo County Code is amended in its entirety to 
read as follows: 
“18.73.020 Short-term rentals prohibited. 
 
The short-term rental of residential property is a prohibited use in every zoning district in the 
county, with the exception of those permitted pursuant to this chapter. A violation of this 
Chapter is a Misdemeanor.” 
 
SECTION III.  Section 18.73.030 of the Inyo County Code is amended in its entirety to 
read as follows: 
“18.73.030 Short-term rentals—General requirements. 
 
Short-term rentals may be permitted on properties zoned open space (OS); rural residential 
(RR); rural residential Starlite; one-family residential (R1); single residence mobile home 
combined (RMH), and Multiple Residential 2-Units (R2) subject to the following requirements 
and limitations: 
 
A. No person shall undertake, maintain, authorize, aide, facilitate, or advertise any short-
term rental activity that does not comply with the provisions of this code.” 
 
B.  All short-term rentals shall be hosted rentals.” 
 
C.  Each short-term rental shall have an owner or designated representative readily 
available to handle any questions or complaints during all short-term rental activities. Any 
change to the contact information for the owner or owner’s designated representative shall 
immediately be provided in writing to the Inyo County planning department, to neighboring 
properties within three hundred feet of the short-term vacation rental, and on any postings 
required by this chapter.” 
 
D. Only two hosted rentals per parcel may be permitted, except in the R2 zone, where only 
one hosted rental per parcel may be permitted, and any such short-term rental in an R2 zone 
shall only be permitted in a dwelling unit that is concurrently occupied by a primary 
resident(s). 
 



 

 3

E. An owner shall only be eligible to maintain a permit(s) for short-term rentals on a 
maximum of one parcel of land. 
 
F. No more than five guestrooms per dwelling unit may be permitted for short-term rental 
activity. 
 
G. Issuance of a hosted short-term rental permit, pursuant to this chapter, is separately 
required for each dwelling unit in which a short-term rental will occur.  Failure to obtain a 
hosted short-term rental permit prior to renting a residentially zoned property for 30-days or 
less shall be considered a violation of Chapter 18.73 and subject to legal action and/or 
enforcement proceedings including but not limited to an administrative penalty of no less than 
the dollar amount of the nightly rental rate of the property for each day the short-term rental is 
advertised and/or operated in violation of 18.73, or as permitted by Section 1.20.010 of this 
Code, whichever is more, to the maximum extent allowed by the law. 
 
H. Short-term rentals shall not be permitted in dwelling units that are not compliant with 
applicable building and safety and/or environmental health requirements, or in non-habitable 
structures, tents, travel trailers, RVs, treehouses, yurts, or other provisions or structures not 
intended for primary occupancy. 
 
I. Only two renters are allowed per guestroom. This number does not include children 
three years and under. 
 
J. A maximum of one vehicle per guestroom shall be allowed, and the owner shall 
provide off-street parking for all such allowed vehicles, that the renter(s) shall utilize. The 
owner shall ensure that the parking limitations are included in short-term rental agreements and 
in all related advertisements. 
 
K. Outdoor amplified sound is prohibited. 
 
L. Quiet hours shall be from nine p.m. to seven a.m. The host shall ensure that the quiet 
hours are included in rental agreements and in all advertisements. 
 
M. Pets, if allowed by owner, shall be secured on the property at all times. Continual 
barking or other nuisances created by unattended pets are prohibited. 
 
N. Trash bins and recycling storage containers shall be required for all permitted short-
term rentals and such bins and containers shall not be stored within public view. 
 
O. Outdoor fire areas are only permitted in compliance with applicable state and local laws 
and shall not be utilized by short-term renters during quiet hours. 
 
P. Short-term rental activity is subject to, and the owner shall comply with, Inyo County 
Code Chapter 3.20 Transient Occupancy Tax. The owner shall include the transient occupancy 
tax registration certificate number on all short-term rental agreements, and in any related 
advertisements. 



 

 4

 
Q. An address sign compliant with the County’s sign ordinance 18.75 with a clearly 
legible, from the street, address number shall be included on each short-term rental.” 
 
SECTION IV.  Subsections 18.73.040.A.9 and 18.73.040.A.10 of the Inyo County Code 
are amended in their entirety to read as follows: 
“9. A deposit for the cost of the county mailing notice of permit applications received and 
granted to property owners and neighbors of proposed and approved short-term rentals within 
three hundred feet of the subject property; 
 
10. A planning department issued neighborhood acknowledgement form signed by each 
resident within three hundred feet of the proposed hosted rental. If the applicant is unable to 
obtain the required signatures, the applicant shall provide proof of his or her reasonable 
attempts to gather those signatures. The applicant shall also include and share a copy of the 
short-term rental rules with each resident contacted.” 
 
SECTION V. Section 18.73.060 of the Inyo County Code is amended in its entirety to read as 
follows: 
“RESERVED” 
 
SECTION VI. Subsection 18.73.070.A of the Inyo County Code is amended in its 
entirety to read as follows:  
“A. Every short-term rental permit will be reviewed annually by the Planning Director. This 
review shall include any complaints that may have been submitted on the short-term rental and 
site visits if deemed necessary to fully evaluate complaints and to initiate a modification 
proceeding as deemed appropriate given all of the facts and circumstances of a given parcel on 
which short term rental activity is permitted.” 
 
SECTION VII.  Subsection 18.73.070.B is amended in its entirety to read as follows: 
 
“B. The planning director may revoke or modify a short-term rental permit as follows: 
 
    1.    Notice and Hearing. Notice shall be mailed to the owner at the address specified in the 
approval application. The notice shall specify the reason(s) for the modification or revocation 
and shall designate a time and place of an administrative hearing with the planning director no 
sooner than six and no later than thirty weekdays, excluding holidays, following the mailing 
date of the notice. 
    The owner shall be provided the opportunity to present written and oral evidence at the 
hearing. Failure to appear at the hearing shall constitute a waiver of any objections to the 
proposed modification or revocation. 
    a.    Following the hearing, the planning director may revoke or modify the approval upon 
making one or more of the following findings: 
        i. The approval was obtained by fraud; 
       ii. The short-term rental activity has been or is being conducted in violation of this chapter 

or other applicable law; 
      iii. The conditions of approval have been or are being violated; 



 

 5

      iv. The short-term rental activity constitutes a public nuisance. 
       v. The parcel on which the short term rental violation has occurred has three or more 

violations in a year, which shall be an automatic revocation. 
vi. Ownership of more than one parcel on which short-term rentals are permitted shall in 

itself be an automatic revocation of all of the owner’s short-term permits, except for the 
permit(s) originally granted. 

 
2. Notice of Decision. A written notice of the planning director’s decision shall be 

prepared and mailed to the owner at the address specified in the application for approval, or as 
may have otherwise been formally changed by the owner. The notice shall contain a statement 
directing the owner to immediately cease using the property for short-term rentals, and that 
failure to cease such use may be subject to further legal action and/or enforcement proceedings 
including but not limited to an administrative penalty of no less than the dollar amount of the 
nightly rental rate of the property for each day the short-term rental is advertised and/or 
operated in violation of 18.73, or as permitted by Section 1.20.010 of this Code, whichever is 
more, to the maximum extent allowed by law.”  
 
SECTION VII.  Subsection 18.73.070.C of the Inyo County Code is added to read as 
follows: 
“C.   Appeal. The decision of the planning director to modify or revoke a short-term rental 
application may be appealed to the Planning Commission consistent with Chapter 18.81 of this 
code.” 
 
SECTION IX.  Section 18.73.080 of the Inyo County Code is amended in its entirety to 
read as follows: 
“A. Initial complaints regarding short-term rental activity on a parcel permitted pursuant to 
this chapter will generally be directed to the owner or owner’s designated representative 
identified in the short-term rental permit. The owner, or designated representative of short-term 
rentals shall be responsible for contacting the tenant to correct the problem within ninety 
minutes, or within forty-five minutes if during quiet hours, including visiting the site if 
necessary, to ensure that the issue has been corrected. The owner or owner’s designated 
representative shall report any such complaints, and their resolutions or attempted resolutions, 
to the Inyo County planning department within twenty-four hours of the occurrence. Failure to 
respond to complaints or report them to the planning department within twenty-four hours of 
the occurrence shall be considered a violation of this section, and may constitute cause for 
revocation or modification of the short-term rental permit. Occupants of surrounding properties 
shall be apprised of this complaint procedure. 
 
B.   The county may enforce the provisions of this chapter in accordance with Title 22 of this 
code.” 
 
SECTION X.  Severability 
If any section, subsection, sentence, clause, or phrase of this ordinance is for any reason held to 
be invalid or unconstitutional by a decision of any court of competent jurisdiction, such a 
decision shall not affect the validity of the remaining portions of this ordinance. The Board of 
Supervisors hereby declares that it would have passed this ordinance, and each and every 



 

 6

section, subsection, sentence, clause, or phrase not declared invalid or unconstitutional without 
regard to whether any portion of this ordinance would be subsequently declared invalid or 
unconstitutional. 
 
SECTION XI. Effective date. 
This Ordinance shall take effect and be in full force and effect thirty (30) days after its 
adoption.  Before the expiration of fifteen (15) days from the adoption thereof, a summary of 
this Ordinance shall be published once in a newspaper of general circulation printed and 
published in the County of Inyo, State of California in accordance with Government Code 
Section 25124(b).  The Clerk of the Board is hereby instructed and ordered to so publish a 
summary of this Ordinance together with the names of the Board voting for and against same. 
  
PASSED AND ADOPTED this 11th day of February, 2020 by the following vote of the Inyo 
County Board of Supervisors: 
 
AYES:  
NOES:  
ABSTAIN:  
ABSENT:      
 

_______________________________ 
       Chairperson   
 
ATTEST:    Clint Quilter 
        Clerk to the Board 
 
 
By:   ______________________________________ 
 Darcy Ellis, Assistant 



RESOLUTION NO. 2O2O-OI

A RESOLUTION OF THE PLANNING COMMISSION OF THE
COUNTY OF INYO, STATE OF CALIFORNIA, RECOMMENDING
THAT THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS CERTIFY THE PROPOSED

PROJECT IS EXEMPT FROM THE REQUIREMENTS OF THE
CALIFORNIA ENVIRONMENTAL QUALITY ACT, AND TO MAKE
CERTAIN FINDINGS WITH RESPECT TO AND RECOMMEND THE
INYO COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS APPROVE ZONE TEXT

AMENDMENT NO. 2O2O.OI INYO COUNTY

WHEREAS, the Inyo County Board of Supervisors, through Inyo County Code (ICC)
Section 15.12.040, has designated the Planning Commission to serve as the
Environmental Review Board pursuant to Section 15022 of the California Environmental
Quality Act (CEQA) Guidelines, which is responsible for the environmental review of all
County projects; and

WHEREAS, Pursuant to the Califomia Environmental Quality Act (CEQA), the proposed
ordinance is exempt from CEQA by "Categorical Exemption, Class I Existing Facilities"
found in 14 CCR section 15301 that applies to the operation, repair, maintenance,
permitting, leasing, licensing, or minor alteration of existing public or private structures,
facilities, mechanical equipment, or topographical features, involving negligible or no
expansion of use beyond that existing at the time of the lead agency's determination. .

The Zone Text Amendment proposes to change certain permitting requirements, adds the
multiple residential, 2-unit zone as allowed for short-term rentals and disallows non-
hosted short term rentals of residential property; these changes are to an already allowed
use in specific zoning districts of the County and will cause a reduction of potential
impacts to residential neighborhoods; and therefore, the activity is exempt from CEQA;
and

WHEREAS, the Inyo County Planning Commission held a public hearing onJanuary 22 ,
2020, to review and consider a request for approval of Zone Text Amendment No. 2020-
01, and considered the staff report for the project and all oral and written comments
regarding the proposal; and

WHEREAS, ICC Section 18.03.020 in part states that it is necessary for the zoning
ordinance to be consistent with the General Plan; and

WHEREAS, the approval of ZTA2020-01results in updates to penalties for violations,
permitting requirements and changes to allowed activities related to the short-term
rental of residential properties, which does not cause new use types to what is already
allowed based on General Plan designations and use permits will continue to be
required for all short-term rental of residential property activities; and

WHEREAS, ZTA 2020-01is consistent with the Inyo County Zoningcode as it will
result updates to penalties for violations, adds multiple residential as an allowed zone for



short-term rentals, includes specific permitting requirements and certain allowed
activities related to short-term rental of residential properties, and will not cause new use
types to what is already established in the Inyo County ZoningCode and use permits will
continue to be required for all for all short-term rental of residential property activities.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT HEREBY RESOLVED, that based on all of the written and
oral comment and input received at the January 22,2020 public hearing, including the
Planning Department Staff Report, the Planning Commission makes the following
findings regarding the proposal and hereby recommends that the Board of Supervisors
adopt the following findings for the proposed project:

RECOMMENDED FINDINGS

1. ZTAzl20-O|lShort-term Rentals is exempt from CEQA by "Categorical
Exemption, Class I Existing Facilities" found in 14 CCR section 15301 that
applies to the operation, repair, maintenance, permitting,leasing, licensing, or
minor alteration of existing public or private structures, facilities, mechanical
equipment, or topographical features, involving negligible or no expansion of use
beyond that existing at the time of the lead agency's determination. . . . The
ZoneText Amendment proposes to change penalties for violations, certain
permifting requirements and disallows non-hosted short term rentals of residential
property to an already allowed use in specific zoningdistricts of the County; these
changes will cause a reduction of potential impacts to residential neighborhoods;
and therefore, the activity is exempt from CEQA.

2. Based on substantial evidence in the record, the proposedZoningOrdinance
Amendment is consistent with the Goals and Policies of the Inyo County General
Plan.

3. Based on substantial evidence in the record, the proposedZoning Ordinance
Amendment is consistent with Title 18 (Zoning Ordinance) of the Inyo County
Code.

2



BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the Planning Commission recommends that the
Board of Supervisors take the following actions:

RECOMMENDED ACTIONS

1. Approve the Amendments to Title l8 regarding Short-term Rental activities based
on all of the information in the public record and on the recommendation of the
Planning Commission.

PASSED AND ADOPTED this 22nd day of January,2020 by the following vote of the
Inyo County Planning Commission:

AYES:
NOES:
ABSTAIN:
ABSENT:

Inyo County Planning

Director

CJ

Paula Riesen, Secretary of the Commission

3


	 Call to Order
	1. PUBLIC COMMENT

	 Closed Session
	2. CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL – ANTICIPATED LITIGA
	3. CONFERENCE WITH COUNTY’S LABOR NEGOTIATORS [Pursua

	 Open Session
	4. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE
	5. REPORT ON CLOSED SESSION AS REQUIRED BY LAW.
	6. PUBLIC COMMENT
	7. COUNTY DEPARTMENT REPORTS (Reports limited to two
	8. INTRODUCTIONS - The following new employees will b

	 Departmental - Personnel Actions
	9. Request Board find that, consistent with the adopt
	Agenda Request Form

	10. Request Board find that, consistent with the adopt
	Agenda Request Form


	 Consent Agenda
	11. Request Board reappoint Ms. Marilyn Bracken to a f
	Agenda Request Form
	Notice of Vacancy - Independence Cemetery District
	Letter of Interest - Marilyn Bracken

	12. Request Board approve letter of support for an Iny
	Agenda Request Form
	INF Letter of Support for Grant Application

	13. Request Board approve a final payment of $1,500 fr
	Agenda Request Form
	2019 Mule Days Digital Advertising

	14. Request Board approve a Conflict of Interest Code
	Agenda Request Form
	Inyo LTC Conflict of Interest Code Resolution No. 2019-10

	15. Request Board approve the Memorandum of Understand
	Agenda Request Form
	FINAL MOU with Wild Iris

	16. Request Board authorize payment to the USDA Forest
	Agenda Request Form
	CSA2 Invoice


	 Departmental
	17. Request Board provide direction to the Owens Valle
	Agenda Request Form
	Feb. 13 OVGA Agenda - draft

	18. Request Board: A) declare Global Diving & Salvage,
	Agenda Request Form
	OSPR - Bid Tabulation
	Global Diving & Salvage, Inc. Proposal Agreement

	19. Request Board approve the minutes of the regular B
	Agenda Request Form


	 Timed Items
	20. 11 A.M. - AG COMMISSIONER - Cannabis - Request Boa
	Agenda Request Form
	Proposed Ordinance Amending 5.40.070 

	21. 11 A.M. - AG COMMISSIONER - Cannabis - Request Boa
	Agenda Request Form
	Application Scoring Jan 2020
	January 2020 License Availablity

	22. 11 A.M. - PLANNING - Request Board: A) conduct a p
	Agenda Request Form
	Chapter 18.73 w/ Redline Changes
	Proposed Ordinance to Amend Title 18
	Planning Commission Resolution No. 2020-01


	 Comment
	23. PUBLIC COMMENT

	 Board Members and Staff Reports



